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MR, ODAM: Are you ready to proceed,

Youvr Homor? !
THE MASTER: Yes,
Mr. Odam, the witness who was on the staﬁd

1
when you recessed rather early yesterday,

|
Mr. Carl Williams, afe you ready to proceed? %

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, but before we
proceed, may I on the record deliver what we
got in by way of bus from Austin that
Ms. Levatino plcked up?

THE MASTER: Surely.

'MR. ODAM: ' I inadvertently yesterday
picked up from the court reporter, tbe
Master's copy of yesterday's téstimony.

THE MASTER: You want {it, Mr. Mitchell?

MR. MITCHELL: I am going to check the
Court's invitation and not turm down any ﬁhat
I can get, Judge Meyers, at this stage. It
doesn't amount to much, does 1t?

MR, ODAM: Also, I would like to hand
to the -~

THE MASTER: Mr. Mitchell, I do want it
back to deliver to Mr. Pipkin's office, which
1 d6 every weekend,

Now, you also have from me the 19th of
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November to the 5th of December testimony
and you're welcome to keep it, but do, please,
remember to give it back to me sometime.

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir, Your Honor,

I have it in the courtroom and just in the
event the cross-examination of Brother Couling
becomes necessary.

THE MASTER: Yes.

MR. ODAM: Also delivered to us were
copies made -- work copies for the Master
of December 8th,‘9th, 10th and 1lth, which
I will give to the Master,

THE MASTER: Thank you,

MR. ODAM: I also received and I give
to Mr. Mitchell a transmittal letter of copies
of p;oceedings of the cause, dated December
8th, 9th, 10th and 1lth, which will be the
same,

Now, again, with the understanding
that these are copies being furnished at
his request which is really copies that
were made up for the commission members at
some poinf, so, they are not turned over
forever, but for use --

MR, MITCHELL: Thank you, Mr. Odam.
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MR. ODAM: That is 2 through 1ll.

Now, I hand to him what we received on
the bus pursuant to earlier conversations,

a letter of transmittal signed by Mr. Pipkin
by Mrs. Pearson, and it's dated December the
10th, addressed to Mr. Mitchell, dated v
December 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5, and these copies
have been sitting available to Mr. Mitchell
at the court reporter's office -- correction,
at the commissioner's office since they were
reproduced on December 10th, which was last
week,

We give these also under the same
situation to Mr, Mitchell.

MR, MITCHELL: Will the Court take
judicial notice where Mr. Mitchell asked for
that, approximately one month --

THE MASTER: Yes, but in connection with
our conversation two days ago, the question
was where were the copies of the daily copy.
It was then indicated that it was available
to you at the commigsioner's office and they
apparently put them on the bgs and sent them
down here.

MR. ODAM: And that deliverance of the
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Mr, Mitchell yesterday at about noomn, but I
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daily copy, I will suppose Mr, Flusche is k
ready to proceed with the recall of
Mr, Williams, I presume,

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, I don't want
to interrupt. I understood that I was to
have an opportunity at some point to object
to the massive tender that I was inundated
in yesterday. 1If he has got some more, I
really -- I think I am getting to the point,
in other words, where it's physically and
mechanically impossible for me to be
intelligent about controlling this record.

I wonder if I might undertake the Court's
permission to register some objections pureiy
of a technical nature without soliciting

testimony which I will have to have some

from Mr, Williams as to what has been.proffergd

at this point, Judge Meyers. It would be very
difficult for me to keep up with --

THE MASTER: Well, my notes do not
reflect, Mr. Mitchell, and Mr. Odam and
Mr. Flusche, that either E-186, E-187 or
E-i90 have actually been offered,

Now, they have been temdered to

4
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do not understand that they are yet offered; !
is that correct? l

MR, FLUSCHE: That's correct. So,

Mr. Mitchell, what we did yesterday was in
effect to accommodate you so that you would
have the rather large number of exhibits that
have been marked, including 186 -- E-186,

188 and 189, although they are-to be
authenticated, as I understand, by

Mr. Couling, but they have all been tendered
to you so that you could prepare yourself fori
objection, but they have not yet been offered |
and that i1s why it seems to me it's
inappropriate at this time to make an
objection.

MR, MITCHELL: Well, Your Honor, that's
correct, and I, of course, underxstand the
rules outlined by the Court and the Court is
correct in the oﬂtlining of the rule, but I
submit for the record and for this Court and
fof the consideration of people looking at
this record that the format adopted ia unf#ir
and I am not reflecting on this Court, of
course, but it's an unfair method and I am

submitting it only, Judge, as an attorney
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feel and I am going to confess to this Court

" gheer physical inundation of the record and

addressed to people who are attorneys that

I have been given way in excess of, I

would say, seven hundred to a thousand
exhibits, many of those that had sﬁb-parts
which I spent tha greater part of yesterday
and last night examining and the Court is
quite correct through the expediency and
technicalities, the Examiner has not offered
them and, therefore, I, of course, have no
standing to object; however, I think out of-
fairness to the Judge who is on trial here,
that I should be permitted to make a motion oy
to be permitted, Your Honof, to register at
least some on-going objections before the
matter just completely inundates me and rendex

me totally incompetent as counsel, and I do

and to the record that the drainage of my

competency is being reached, and from the

with that knowledge and notice in the record,
1, of course, will abide by the Court's
rulings. I am certainly going to do that and
will sit down.

THE MASTER: You may proceed, Mr. Odam.
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You still want Mr. Williams?

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir,
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KARL WILLIAMS,
hefng recalled as » witness, testified as follows,

to-wit:

BY MR, FLUSCHE:

THE MASTER: Mr, Will{ams, you were
earlier sworn and, of course, you are still
under oath, as I am sure you know.

THE'WITNESS: Yee, sir,

Q@ (By Mr. Fusche:) Mr, Williams, I hand you a
series of Exhibfts marked E-1971 and ask you if
vou have had an apoortunity to review this grouo
of instruments this morning before you were
called tn testify,

A 1 have,

Q Are those conies ;f advices of vh#rge?

.NR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, I don't know '
the Exhibit number, |

THE MASTER: It i{s E-191, he just said
that, and it is with multinle sub-pnarts,

MR, MITCHELL: May I ask the witness
a buestioh on voir dire?

TYE MASTER: Yes.
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VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION

BY MR, MITCHELL:

Q Have you and Mr. Flusche gotten together about
thage Exhibfts this morning?

A T have looked at these, yes.

O Vhat was the nature of your lnoking at thnse, did
you give him those or how did that come about{
or did he fuét hand them to you?

A Yes, sir,

You had never seen them until a few minutes ago?

I saw them when they were made,

Did you supervise the making of them?

Yes, =fr,

How did they get to Mr. Flusche?

> 0 > O > 0

Yes, sir,
| THE MASTER: D1id you bring them and
give them to Mr, Flusche,'I believe is the
ouestion,
THE WITNESS: Yes, =%r,

THE MASTER: You may nrnceed, Mr,

Flﬁsche.
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FURTHER EXAMINATION

BRY MR, FLUSCHE:

Mr. Williams, those documents marked as Exhibit
E-191 were nrenared in your bank under the same
mechanical means as you described yesterday?
That {e correct,
And you have on file & microfiim for each of
these docuﬁeﬁts and are able to reproduce them
from that microffim there in your bank?
Yes, eir.
And these are the advices of charge which are
debited to the account of Benavides Imnlement and
HarJware Comnany, is that correct?
That is correct, ‘
MR, FLUSCHE: I believe that is all I
have at this time, Your Hénor.
THE MASTER: Do youloass the witness?
MR, FLUSCHE: Pass the witness,
MR, MITCHELL: May I ask, for the
cerfes 191, if they are being nffered?
. THE MASTER: I understand no Exhibits
of all of the ones marked yesterday or today
have heen nffered. I nresume they are gofing

to nut Mr. Couling on and offer the Exhibits
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COURT REPORTERS
717 ANTELOPE - GUARANTY BANK PLAZA

LORRBUS.CHRISTI TEXAS 78401 -




4027

10

1

12

13

1§

16

17

18

with him,

MR, MITCHELL: If there T2 no offer,

I have no examination, Your Honor, but I
certainly reserve the right nf examination.

MR, FLUSCHE: The reason I don't offer
at this time is I don't have the nriginals
and I can nrove that with Mr, Couling,

THE MASTER: I understand that,

MR, FLUSCHE: And out of an abundance
nf cautinn --

THE MASTER: Well, Mr. Mitchell, 1let's =--

MR, MITCHELL: I have had the rule
invoked and there has been no techn'cal
nffer and I can't levy an ohjection. That
rule is on one side of the law as well as
the other.

THE MASTER : That {e correct, All Mr,
Williams s here to test{fy to is that these
are photogranphic reosroductions of records
from his bank, - It will be Mr. Couling's»jqb.
I assume, to testify that he doesn't have
th; originals and doesn't know where they
are, then, they‘will offer these nhotostatic

conles,

Dé. you think there s any cross-examinatipon?
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MR, MITCHELLE I understood there
vould be an nffer through this witness excent
for the best evidence rule, which would be -~

THE MASTER: Well, ff that is helnful to
you ~- why dnmn't you offer E-176, E-178,
E-190 and E-191. That {s what I understand
he was attemoting to sauthenticate, = that
correct?

Mﬁ;.FLUSCHE: That 18 right,

‘MR, MITCHELL: It doesn't agree with
my list, I have E+-174, E-174 through E-178.

THE MASTER: E-174 through 178 has
been admitted.

MR, MITCHELL: Those were the new .
checks nreviously objected to, I believe.

. THE MASTER: They were nreviously
offered and not admitted, but were admitted
vesterday,

MR, MITCHELL: How alnut E-1867

THE MASTER: E-187, E-186, E-190 and
E-191 with sub-narts were authent’cated by
this witness,

MR, MITCHELL: I don't believe E-189
has been authenticated by thig witness, I

believe they are originals, i=s that right,
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COUR

T REPORTERS
717 ANTELOPE « GUARANTY BANK PLAZA
CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS 78401




4075

10

11

12

13

4

15

17

B2 8 B

Mr. Flusche?

MR, FLUSCHE: Yes, =ir,

THE MASTER: And ynu are going to use
My, Call¥ng on those?

MR, FLUSCHE: Yes, =¥r,

THE MASTER: Mr. Mitchell, as I under-
stand, ﬁ—188 with sub-narts 1 through 207
and E-189, which is 1 through 120, are
origiﬁais, and this witnesse has not been
asked a auestion about thase,

MR, FLUSCHE: That is right.

THE MASTER: He has been cuestioned
about E-186-1 through 22 and he has been
auestioned about E-174 through 178 and they
have been adm!tted. E-186=~1 through 3% has
not been offered and E-187-1 through 23
{s about to bhe offered, E<=190, sub-pnart 1
through 192 has been autﬁenticated by this
witness and he also has 191 with it's sub-
parts.

_ Mr, Fluscﬁe, out of an abundance of
caﬁt{on. has j{ust said he doesn't formally
offer them at this time, be?ause he wants to
out Mr, Couling on and 1ét his testify he

doean't have the oripinals nf the Exhibits,
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With that oﬁe exceotinan, he 1s ready
to ﬁffer and subject to that I understand that
you do offer these Exhibits.

MR, FLUSCHE: Yes, sir,

MR, MITCHELL: May I ask two auestions?

THE MASTER: Of me or Mr. Flusche?

MR, MITCHELL: Mr, Flusche.

THE MASTER: All rieht,

ﬁR; anCHELL: Msy I ask for a reauest
of a statement of the rolevanconf which
these Exhibits are being nffered? He sug-
pested yesterday in my auestion to him that
they were rebuttal., I would like tn know the
rebuttal of what,

MR, FLUSCHE: There {s a suggestion in
the record by Mr, Mitchell that Mr. Couling
has stolen this three hundred twenty thousand
dollars and sll of these.documents reconstruct

and .show the nayees to wﬁom the money was

THE MASTER: Well --

MR, MITCHELL: That is R-191, 192 and

THE MASTER: I believe 1t is R-91, 92

and 92: also orobably R-100, which s a
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Court to make a reauest, I didn't demand

recanitulation,

MR, FLUSCHE: Yes, there {s one other
thineg. In the Exhibits which we onffer now,
there s a showing there was no equioment to
rent and no checks were vayable for eauipment
in these Exhibits, which fs another ooint in
our case,

MR, MITCHELL: Your contention there is
no eodtﬁment owned by Mr., Couling to rent,
notwi;hstaﬁd{ng the tax returns, and that {is
vhat you are telling this court?

I would 1fke to know, Judge, because it
doeg bear on my objectian;

THE MASTER: Well!, you may request, and
I may ask the Examiner to state his relevancy,
but you have no right to demand.

MR, MITCHELL: - That is why I asked the

anything,

Tﬂﬁ MASTER: Mr, Flusche has stated it
is in effect rebuttal to R-91, 92 and 93 and
1t.{s to show & full explanation of the
bank account of Benavides Implement and
Hardware and also Mr, Flusche said to show

there was no eauinment to rent, {s that the
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MR, FLUSCHE: Yes, sir,

THE MASTER: Is there any other?

MR, ODAM: I don't want Mr., Mitchell to
think there might not be checks in here,
just as before, that mipght say eauipment,
but might say something else on them, but
to fully ernlain and rebut is the purnose of
these'E*hib'ts.

THE MASTER: You may oroceed, Mr,
Flusche.

MR, MITCHELL: Msy I ask one more ques-
tion?

THE MASTER: Yes,.

MR, MITCHELL: Are they offering E-190
on the following sube~parts, and they are
multinle sub-parts,. I would like to know {if
E-100 series fncludes the following sub-narts,
6, 11, 12, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 19, 23, 25,
26, 27, 29, 20, %, 15, 36, 37, 38, 29, 41,
42, 43, 46, 47, 48, 53, 55, 57, 60, 69, 71,
74, 76, '81, 87, 91, 92, 9, 95, 98, 99, 100,
101, 107, 105. 108, 109, 111, 112, 116, 117,
118, 120, 123, 128, 115..116, 129, 142, 144,

146, 148, 151, 153, 154, 161, 164, 171, 175,
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180, 182, 188, 189‘ 190, 191, 192, and I
believe that s them.

THE MASTER: Dones it include the offer
nf thnee sub-narts, is that the auestion?

MR, MITCHELL: No, Judege, on these
sub-narts, they are multinle instruments
and they hear only one desfgnation, for
example, E£-190-91. |

Does the offer include the E-190 series
through and {ncluding the subenalts as to
the svecffic ones I called out, are they
offering the multiple documents on those?

MR, FLUSCHE: We have tried in E-190
to offer only those which have not already
beén introduced, There may be some very
few dunlicat’ons and they maf be certainly
no more than two or three omtssfnns,.but
we Havp tried to £111 the gap with E-190
eo 85 to add to all of thnse Exhibits
already in evidence and thereby that is the

nffer,.
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MR. MITCHELL: Well, that was my
next question, if it please the Court. The
list that I went through is not the
duplication. That is a separate list, and
I can understand why there would be a
duplication, the case having proceeded as it
was. My next question would be, are they
offering still of those 190 series, those
that are duplicates that have been previously
introduced?

ﬁR. FLUSCHE: Well, I am not going to
pretent to be an auditpr here, but I am
introducing only those which have not already
previously been introduced and if there is a
duplication or two, I think that that can be
understood. I think even Mr. Mitchell
might understand that,.

THE MASTER: Well, I am not sure I
understand Mr. Mitchell's question. He
indicates that E-190, sub-parts 1 through
193 includes some additional sub-parts. That
is some of those have apparently what is
stﬁpled together and have a number of ~-

MR, MITCHELL: Judge, may I approach

the bench?
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MR. MITCHELL: Let me hand you a
typical example, E-190-170, and on some
there are multiple checks. There are debit
slips, I am not fussing. I want to know
if they are offering those multiple documents
so I can be adviged?

THE MASTER: Well, obviously E-190-170
is the face of a check and then the second
page 1s the back, endorsement side of the
check. I take it you're offering both of
those?

 MR. FLUSCHE: Yes, sir.

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir, plus the two
documents on the face, Judge, was my inquiry.
Are they offering both of those checks?

THE MASTER: The one to Hebbronville
Feed and Seed and the one to --

MR. MITCHELL: Right, I think the record
should speak to that. Yes, sir, that is my
question.

MR. FLUSCHE: kLet me look at it just a
minﬁte, Your Honor.

MR, MITCHELL: I point out, Your Honor,

it's not a question of duplication with other
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exhibits. 1It's a question simply in my mind
1f that one sub designation carries with it -i
that one exhibit carries -- correction, that
one designation carries two exhibits and
that again is not for any purpose other than
to be sure that the record reflects what we
are offering.

MR. FLUSCHE: Both of those checks are
included in this exhibit.

THE MASTER: All right. Give it back
to Mr; Mitchell. I take it at least with
respect to that one and I suppose the others,
they are all offered -~ included in the
offer?

MR. FLUSCHE: Yes, sir. Yes, sir. As
I say, there may be some duplications and as
we go along there will be some advicives of
charges which are also contained in the E-190
and those will be designated in the record.

MR, MITCHELL: May I have just a minute,
Judge? |

THE MASTER: Yes, sir.

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES
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EXAMINATION

BY MR. MITCHELL:

A

All right. Mr., Williams, I am going to ask you
some questions first as to the E-190-70 series,
and let me hand them to you, please, sir, so that
you might --
THE MASTER: I am sorry. You sald
E-190-70.
MR. MITCHELL: I am sorry. E-190-1
through 193 series.
THE MASTER: That's correct.
(By Mr. Mitchell) All right. Now, and I will

ask you some predicate questions which would be

applicable to all of the exhibits that have been

reproduced, which as the Court inéentoried earlier
would include that series, and that is the E-190

series and the E-186 sgseries and the E-178 series,

:and I am primarily interested, Mr., Williams, in

the mechanics of the reproduction.

First, when were you requested, please, sir,
to'reproduce the E-190 series and by whom? Do
you recall?

I cannot say at this moment without the records
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from the bank.

Well, an approximation, within the last forty-eight
hoﬁrs - ‘
No, sir.

Six months ago; a year?

Within the last sixty days.

Okay. If this procedure started say the first
part of November of this year, would that help
you fix a time from which you could -- your
recolléction could be served? Was it prior to
November 1lst that you were requested to reproduce
the 190 series?

I would hesitate to say exactly when it started.
We have made numerous pictures and for whom and
at the request of whom, I would be at a loss to
say who made the requests and --

When?

-~ and when.

Are you quite sure that it was not say within the
last ten days --

Well --

-~ that the 190 was requested?

1 ﬁave had requests within the last ten days for
riumerous material, but whether this'ﬁaa part of

it, I cannot say at this time.
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All right. Would that be your answer if I hand
you 186, could you give the Court and the record -
an approximation of when you were requested to

reproduce it, 186 series?

MR, MITCHELL: Your Honor, in connection
with this series, let me interrupt. The
186-1 1is out of order. 1It's a check that
should belong to another series, and may I
call attention to the Court and the record
that for some reason it was included in that
series that -- I used a bad example for the
witnees, The 186~1 should not be in that
series, am I correct, Counsel?

MR, FLUSCHE: At the time that I
requested the documents in 186, I didn't have
the exhibits at hand, and, so, I teﬁuented
this particular one to be sure that I had it
in the record. It has already been
introduced as another exhibit.

MR. MITCHELL: 1Is it a fair statement,
Counsel, that Exhibit 186-1 is in the E-174
saeries and it should not be included in the
186-1. 1It's a duplication, Judge, and it's
in the wrong series. 1It's the same as, I

believe, E-174, Your Honor; am I correct,
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Mo, sir, I cannot under oath say exactly when I

‘"was recuested to produce this.

Mr. Flusche?

MR, FLUSCHE: 1It's a duplication of

{(By Mr. Mitchell) Mr. Williams, let me ask you --
THE MASTER: Well, pardon me, You're
acking Mr. Williams, then, with the exception
of E-186-1 --
MR. MITCHELL: That's right,
THE MASTER: -- when the others were
requested of him to be duplicated?
MR. MITCHELL: Right. When I handed him
the 186 package, I overlooked the fact that
I had been making my analysis of this series
of exhibits, I discovered that 186-1 i8 a
duplicate of 174,
(By Mr. Mitchell) And Mr. Williams, ignore my
question insofar as it refers to that top
document, 186-1, and I will take it aside and
ask you 1f you can look at 186-2 and tell me when
you weve called on to reproduce it and the other

series:; that is the 2 through and including --

A1l right. And may I ask you, does your

recollection serve you that it was longer than
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say two weeks, three weeks or shorter; your best
recollection is all I am asking for.
I believe it was longer than two weeks.
All right, Now, I hand you 187-1 through 187-23
and ask you the same question; that is as to the
time you were called upon to reproduce it, that
series of exhibits,
Well, my answer would have to be the same, as
regards to this series, because I cannot recall
exactly when 1t was,
All right.‘ And then the group -- I will take
those back. |

Now, the group that has been handed to you
this morning, and that is 193 series. I will
hand that to you. I haven't had an opportunity
to examine them, but I will ask you the same
question as to when the request of you was made
tsvreproduce and when they were reproduced, the
best present recollection?
There again, my answer would have to be the same

because I have no records with me to substantiate

an exact date on it.

You're quite sure that the request was not made
say within the last two or three days or say week?

Yes, sir,
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All righ:., Now, once again, please, sir, as to
the time, I will now move as to who -- who
requested you to make those reproductions in this
series that I have handed you, the one that you're
holding there in your hand that was introduced
this morning and the 190 series and the 187 series
Were you subpoenaed or were you called on the .
phone, and 1if so, tell us who and by what means?
I have been subpoenaed. I have recei&ed numerous
subpoenas from the Attorney General's office as
well as frbm this committee to produce records.
Some of these may include some work that was done
for the Attorney General's office. I cannot say,
All right. And the procedure, Mr, Williams, and
let me see if I can run through that to expedite
it, 1f I might be permitted to lead the witness
through that --
- THE MASTER: Well, you have him on

.cross-examination. _
(By Mr. Mitchell) I believe the Court asked you
yesterday, and I think you testified, that the
procedure would be that these documents, that 1is
whether they are checks or debit memos, et cetera,
are on microfilm and the procedures that someone

in your staff of the bank goes through the
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microfilm until the document is discovered on a

viewer and picked out and reproduced, is that

correct?
That is correct.
And the form in which these documents are
reproduced is that basic reproduction that comes
out of your bank?
Yes, sir,
The checks, the original of the checks are sent
back to the customex?
Yes, sir.-
Benavides Implement and Hardware, Mf; Rudolfo
Couling in this case, am I correct?
I believe that's correct.
Along with the credit memos, and look at 186.
These are not checks, but I want to be sure -- you
have the 186 series, have you not?
No, sir.
Waiere 1s that one?
MR, FLUSCHE: 1It's probably over there.
MR, MITCHELL: Yes, thank you.
(By Mr. Mitchell) For example, 186-15 --
incidentally, this 186-15 is the same as 18, 26
aﬁd 31, What is that?

This 18 a debit memo,
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Okay. Now, are those picked up by your same
microfilming process?
Yes, sir.
Now, where you have multiple pages such as that
one when you turned it over, is that a
mechanical process of putting together the back
side and the front side of these documents?
That is done manually.
Well, the reason I ask, of course, is looking at
E-190-71, I can't make it out. For example,
E-190-71, we have a check at the top that appears
to be to E. Carrillo and one at the bottom. that
appears to be to Cash Store, but when I turn it
over, I find that I have got a Cash Store
endorsement behind my E. Carrillo check, and I
have got what appears to be an E. Carrillo
endorsement behind my Cash Store check.
You see what I mean?

It's possible that tha clerk who assembled these _
did so by reversing.
Ali right. Would you agree that the back side
is reversed?
I would say so, yes, sir.

' MR. MITCHELL: And, Your Honor, may I

have the permission to unstaple it and set
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it right.
THE MASTER: Certainly. I think you
ought to hand it to Mr. Flusche and see 1if
he agrees with that.
MR. FLUSCHE: I understand.
THE MASTER: 1 suspect he does.
MR. MITCHELL: 1Is that correct?
MR. FLUSCHE: Yes,
MR. ODAM: May I be excused, Your Honor,
just a moment? »
'THE MASTER: Yes.
(By Mr. Mitchell) Mr. Williams, the way that I
have turned it now and I will hand it back to you,
E-190-71, and ask you if it would be correct in
that manner?
That looks correct.
So that the endorsement of the Cash Store, that is
the Cash Store endofsement by Abel Yzaguirre --
Yes, sir.
~-- and the endorsement on the check 294 on
E-190-71 is now matched up with the fromt side
of the check.
Yeg, sir.
MR. MITCHELL: And may I staple the two

together, Judge?
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'regulations of the banking board, am I correct?

THE MASTER: Yes, sir.
(By Mr. Mitchell) That occurs purely as a
mechanical matter, isn't that correct?
Yes, sir, »
It doesn't affect the authenticity of the checks
or the --
No, sir.
All right. Now --
THE MASTER: Excuse me, Mr. Mitchell,
Did you put that back in the right folder?
MR, MITCHELL: Yes, sir, the E-190
series is over here, Judge.
THE MASTER: All right, fine.
(By Mr. Mitchell) Now, once again, I note also
on E~191-1, what is that document now?
This E-191-1 is a debit memo of ~-- a charge for
printing of personal listed checks.
At any rate, the debit memo, the checks, the
loan -- what did you call that other document?
Loan payments.
Or advicive charge.
qu, sir.
All constitute documents that are on file with

your bank and are kept under the rules and
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Yes, sir,
And you're testifying here that you reproduced
those documents and those alone; am I correct?
I produced what I have produced here in court
from the recofds of the bank,
A1l right. And those records include not only
checks, but the deposit slips, the advicive charge
and the minor charges and so forth?
Yee, sir,
Okay. Mr. Williams, I am going to ask you
concerning another series that have been
previously introduced and mainly so that the
record will reflect still another endorsement; ‘
for example, looking at E-175 on the reverse side,
there appears to be g --

THE MASTER: Excuse me. You're referrina

to E-175, are you?

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Judge Meyers.
(By Mr. Mitchell) There appears to be a stamp on
the reverse side. I mean you and I have had an
occasion on a prior occasion to talk about that
stamp, have we not?
Yes, sir,.
Tell the Court, first of all, what it is.

A stamp as it appears in this exhibit reads

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES
COURT REPORTERS
717 ANTELOPE - GUARANTY BANK PLAZA
CORPUS CHRIST!, TEXAS 78401




1}

12

"

15

o

Q

4044

——— - —— —— e e e — -

credited to the account of the within-named
payee, absence of --

Endorsements?

Abserce of endorsements guaranteed, First State
Bank of San Diego, San Diego, Texas.

I note on E-175 that endorsement appears and for
the iecord reflects, is the effect an endorsement
vher: there is no actual endorser by the named
payec on the item?

Yes.

That is true, of course, with 175, that there 1is
no endorsement of the payee?

Yes, sir.

Do you know Judge Carrillo's signature? 1 believe

you have testified in the past you do?

1 believe I would recognize Judge Carrillo's
signature, yes, sir.

Well, first of all, it does not appear on the
exhibit we just mentioned because that 1is a
stamped endorsement and it does not appear on
E-174, does it?

No, sir.

Tﬁe one on E-178, Mr. Williams, that is not his
endorsement, is it, if you can tell, and I will

give you some others if you want to make a

!
|
|
|
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comparison,

It's my opinion that E-178 does not bear the

personal endorsement of O, P. Carrillo.

A1l right, So that E-178 is not his endorsement.

E-175 is a stamped endorsement and whatever the
other one -- 174 is a stamped endorsement.
Yes, sir.
Okay, thank you,
MR, MITCHELL: We renew our objections,
Your Honor, to that series on the grounds
thatrthe exhibits are hearsay as to Judge
Carrillo; that is E-174, E-178 and E-175.
THE MASTER: Well, the objection is

overruled, but I am correct, am I not, that

that series, and that is E-174 through E-178

was identified by Mr. Couling as checks he
wrote, but they were excluded initially
because the photocopies had not been
obtained.

MR. FLUSCHE: That's correct, Youx

Honor.

THE MASTER: The objection is overruled.

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Your Honor, I
didn't mean to indicate that Mr. Couling

hadn't identified them as his signature on

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES

COURT REPORTERS
717 ANTELOPE » GUARANTY BANK PLAZA
CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS 78401




4046

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
1

19

2L

24

the checks, that's right. But as to
Judge Carrillo, our position is that they
are hearsay.

THE MASTER: I understand you.

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES
. COURT REPORTERS
717 ANTELOPE « GUARANTY BANK PLAZA

CORPUS CHRISTH, TEXAS 78401




© 4047

10
1l
12
13
14
15
16
Y

8

B 2 B OB

MR, MITCHELL: May I have just one
second?

THE MASTER: Yes, sir,

MR, MITCHELL: Your Honor, would the
Court 1ike for me to nromounce my objections
to the series at this point and not walt
until the entire groun is nffered?

I submit I have a duty at this time to
object to them.

THE MASTER: Yes, I think that is fair,
You want to make yar objections now so if
I consider the objection gond that it maybe
cured by thie witness, then the Examiner can
ocuvestion this witness further, but if not,
then they wi!l be admitted,

MR, MITCHELL: Fine. We object to the
186~1 through 186~23 series and all the sub-
narts and 187-1 through and including 187-123
and all éub-natts,.190-1'throuzh and includ-
ing E-190-1913 ana gub-narts on the following
grounds,

THE MASTER: Excuse me. E-191 is also
in that grouon, Do you wish to object to
that series as well? | |

MR, MITCHELL: I will, Judge, thank
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you,

It is renresented as nart of the same
account?

MR, FLUSCHE: Yes, sir.

MR, MITCHELL: I am in a nosition to
expand then to 191-1 through E-191-54.
and on the following erounds.

The objections that I have run to each
and every ftem. Best evidence, not legiti-
mate rebuttal, both sides having rested,
and, therefore, inadmissible at this late
date in the present evidentiary matters:
beyond the orfginal May, 1974, notice: beyond
the First Ameuded Notice of Hearing and con-
seaquently we_olead surprise 2and reauest a
nostponement to nrepare a comnlete defense
and we further, {f it nleme the Court, in
that the data contained therein is contrary
to the Examiner's Roman VII through XII
and belfes and is contrary to the nartner-
ship theory as in Rnman VIII threugh XII
and that is 1nvconnection with the sursrise
and it {s a turnabout on the case theory
and precludes an adeauate representation of

Judge Carrillo in this case.
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"this offer fe R-91, 92, 97 and 100, is that

We object further that the acts relate
to non-judfcial acts and hearsay in thsat in
many instances it relates to transactions
between third, fourth and fi{fth nersons and
we have no control over those. In addition,
{f it nlease the Court, we object to proper
authentication, proper nredicate, In connec-
tion with this objection, we move ton str{ké
R-91, 92, 93 and R-100, the same as being
basedron hearsay as previously examined.

THE MASTER: You move to strike the
ﬁrhib{ts you offered?

MR, MITCHELLt Yes, if the basis for

the basis for which he 1s offering now these
Exhibits, ané 1f so, we move.to strike R-91,
92, 9% and 100,

In addition, we would object -~ I
believe I mentioned they go beyond the term
rule and I believe I added that they would
be, therefore, irrelevant and immateriasl, I
mfzhf'add in connectinn as to assist the
Court in nassing on the nsbjection, we have
orepnfed subnoenses for nractically every

payee. We would like, {f the Court overrules.
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tion and it {s overruled and the motion to

to have these Tssued so we can touch on
the reality of the Benavides Imnlement and
Hardware business, ﬂp will leave the date
of the return of thes~ subooenas auen 80
the Court may nut in the vroper date that
18 deemed to be necessary.

MR, FLUSCHE: 1In resovonse to his motion
to strike R-91, 92, 92 and 100, it apvears
to me it 1= imnossible to cleanse the record
as to»the facts from 8:%0 last Friday morn-
ing, so we would move to retain those in the
record,

If we can cleanse the record of enything
that happened since 8:%0 last Friday, we
would not have introduced any of these docu-
ments,

THE MASTER: Well, there sre two things

vending before the Master. One is the objec-

strike s overrﬁled also,

You have nothing more nf Mr, Williams,
Mr. Mitchell?

MR, MITCHELL: No, I don't, Judge Meyers.
Thank ym.

Is the motion to postpone and ¢ontinuance
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overruled also?
THE MASTER: Yes, sir, I included those,
MR, MITCHELL: I had a feeling it would
be, but I didn't want to miss the Court's

ruling on that,.

RE~EXAMINATION
(Of Mr. Wi{lliams)

MR, FLUSCHE:

Q

o > O >

In nrder to satfefy the curiosity of Mr. Mitchell,
could you look at 186 and look at your subnoena
and see 1f that refreshes your recollection as to
when that request was made?

Yes, sir, I hold‘in my hand a subpoena dated
December 17. 1975, asking for the material con-

tained i{n Exhibit E-186,

And prior to my handing you that subooena, did

I.call youwr office and request the reproduction

nf these documents?

Yes, sir,
Was that on December 16th?
I believe so, =ir,

A11 right,
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BY MR, MITCHELL:

MR, FLUSCHE: That s a1l I have.

RE-EXAMINATION

-Yes, I will, Judge.

_——

Mr. Williams, you are not telling us the first
notice was vesterday, the 17th.  are ynu?

THE MASTER: 16th, I think you said.
Or 16th, Tuesday?
In fhat instance, yes, sir.
And then you undertook and did orenare 186-1
through and fncluding 186-2? day before yester-
dav?
I believe that is correct, ves,
How about =-- now, Counsel has undértnken to refresh
your recollection about 186, How about the E-191
sertes, can you tell us when you renroduced {t?
1917
Yes, st

THE MASTER: In fairness to the witnosé,

hand thoee tn him,

If my memory i{s correct, this series of Exhibits

nerhans constitutes part of a number nf reeuests
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taken out of senuence.-
Karl, beginning when and ending when?
I have no fdea,
It 1s not included in that December 17th subpnoena?
I would not think so, although maybe one or two
items could have been.
How about the 187 serfes?
I cannot ninpoint a date for that,
| MR, MITCHELL: A1l right., Thank you,
I have no further euestions, Judge Mevyers
Mﬁ. FLUSCHE: I belfeve I have nothing
further. | |
THE MASTER: Thank you, Mr, Willisms,
you are free to step down and go back tn
San Diego, |
THE WITNESS: Thank you. sir.
THE MASTER: Your next witness is Mr,
Couling?
MR, ODAM: Yes, sir, Mr., Flusche {s
“calling him, and I would like to get from
Cnunsel the Exhibits which I gave him yes-~
terday,
MR, MITCHELL: I hand you the E-188-1
through and ‘ncluding =~

THE MASTER: 1 through. 207,
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you,

Mr. Mitchell, are yonu with us?

MR, MITCHELL: No, I am really not,
Honor. -

THE MASTER: I ddn't think you were.
MR, MITCHELL: I am floundering s bit,
THE MASTER: E-187-1 through 207 is
my notes reflect.

MR, MITCHELL: Yes, I have tt., Thank
Judge,

TﬁE MASTER: You are welcome,

Mr, Couling, you are rem{nded that you

~are still under oath,

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir,

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES

COURT REPORTERS
717 ANTELOPE - GUARANTY BANK PLAZA
CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS 78401




4055

10
m
12
13
1
15
16

17

19

B o2 B B

RUDOLFO COULING,
being recalled as a witness, testified as follows,

to-wit:

BY MR, ODAM:

Q Ynu nreviously testified ‘n this nroceeding, I
belleve?

A Yes, sir.

Q It {s your earlier testimony that you were at
one time the owner nf Benavides Imnlement and
Hardware?

A Y=, sir,

Q And on nrevious onccasions you have {dentified
checks, and for the benefit of the record, 174
through 178, and to refresh your recollection, I
show you a cony of 174 through 178 at this time,
and just briefly, could you re-identify that has
been admitted into evidence as 174 through 1787

A Yes, sir, they are checks made out to O. P.
Carrille.

Q You identified nreviously that as being your sig-

_ nature on those checks?

- A Yes,

Q Those checks are drawn on the Benavides Imnlement

snd Hardware account at the San Diego bank?
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A Yes, sir, I £711ed them out, sir,

A Yes, sir,
MR, MITCHELL: Pardon me, that is the
174, 5, 6 --
THE MASTER: Yes, 174 through and includ-
fng E-178, is that correct?
MR, ODAM: Yes,
MR, MITCHELL: Thank you, Judge Meyers.
Q@ (By Mr., Odam:) Mr, Couling, vreviously when you
testified, there was a series of original checks
which have been 1dentified by you, which was the
series 179-i through 179-29, which are in evi-
dence, and tn the nosseésion nf the court revorter
at this time.
I show you now what has been marked as 179-20,
31, 22, 23 and 24 and ask yon, sfr,.if you can
ident1fy those ftems which T just handed to you?
A Yes, there are all checks made out from Benavides
Implement and Hardware to the Farm and Ranch .
Store on the First State Bank ~f San Diego,

Q Did you sign those checks?

Q And the signature on there, you identify as being
§nur own. signature? .
A Yes, sir,

Q I show yhu what has been marked, and they are out

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES
RT REPORTER
717 ANTELOPE GUARANTY BANK PLAZA
CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS 78401



4057 |

10
n
12
13
v
15
16
7
18

T

B BB B

of order, but they do start nff with E-188-1,
and I believe, as the Court stated, through 207,
and ask you if yonu can identify these items, not
necessarily {ndividually, but generally as you
go through the two hundred seven checks, f you
could identify what those are, sir.

Yo, sir.

To assist you, I will ask you this,

When you have not been here testifying in
Court, have you had an oonortunity to examine
these individual checks nutside of the presence
of the Court?

Yes, sir,

Can you 1dentify, pnlease, sir, for the record,
what the 188 series purports to be?

A1l checks from m? bank statements from the

Benavides Imnlement and Hardware Comnany.

Q And the checks vou are looking at there, can you

identify your =fgnature on those checks?

Yes, sir,

I believe the record has nreviously indicated, un
until the time ynu sold the store tn Cleofus
Gonzalez, that you were the only vnerson authorized
to draw checks on that business?

i
Yes, sir,
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Q

I will hand you what has been marked as the 189
sexries, Mr, Couling, and allof it's sub-parts, and
ask you 1f ynu cnu!dbexamfne those,
As you look through those series of documents
I have handed you, have you had an oovortunity to
nrevinusly examine these documents handed to you
outside nf the nresence of the Court?
Yes, sir, I have,
And can you identify for the record what that
series, 188,‘nurnorts to be?
Devosits made nut to =--
MR, MITCHELL®’ Excuse me, I believe that
is 189,
THE MASTER: It is 189,
THE WITNESS: And transferred from my
own account,
Deovnsits intn the Bensvides Imnlement aﬁd Hardware
account?
Yes, sir,
Is 1t correct, let me ask you this auestion, Mr.
Couling, to the best nf your knowledge and recol-
lection, are these series, the 188 series and the
179 ceries and the 189 series. to the best of
yoﬁr recollection, are these a1l of the origimd

devosit slins and checks nn the Benavides Imnlement
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and Hardare account which you have had in your
possession until they were nffered in evidence?
Yes, sfr, to the best of my knowledge.

They have been nreviously offered in evidence?

THE MASTER: I believe not.

Which ones are you talking about?

MR, ODAM: 187, sir.

THE MASTER: Well, it was offered subject
to his‘account{ng for the originals, is that
correct”?

MR, ODAM: Yes, Your Honor, it was
offered,

THE MASTER: VYes, I regret the interrun-
tion,

The series 187 hag been identified by Mr, Karl
Willi{ams of the bank to be confes of 187-1 through
2?7 and bank ohotostatic conies of the other
deposit slins md I will ask you to briefly ook
at those, ‘

MR, MITCHELL: Pardon me, I thought the
Court nreviously overruled the objection end
allowed the Exhibits to come in,

THE MASTER:. I had overruled the oﬁiec-
tions, but subject to the renresentation that

this witness in effect would testify that
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he didn't have tﬁe originals, is that right,
Mr., Odam?
MR, ODAM: Yes, that iz the nurvose of

my asking the witness tn check these out,
(By Mr. Odam:) The series you looked at 1z the
187 series, which is nreviously {dent{fiea as
bank photostatic copies of other devosit slips,
I show you what has been marked snd in evidence as
E-190-1 through 193. These have been {dentified
a3 copies of checks drawn nn the First State Bank
of San Diego and I will. ask you 1f you can to

briefly look through these.
(Exhibits handed to witness.)

Mr., Couling, the series you are looking at there,
the copies of other checks on the San Diego bank
account with respect to E-190 series and E-188
series, are the originals of these {tems, do you
have those {n‘your nossession?

No, sir, I do not,

So what you did have in your vossession are there
on the court-renorter's table and what you have
looked at here would be a2 comnletfon of c&ﬁies

of nther devosit slins and checks on that account?

Yes.'sir.
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A Yes, sir.

Q And one last series tﬁat ornbably was net in
an envelnoe was the 186 serfes. These have not
been numbered with sub-parts,

THE MASTER: You are talking about the
191 serfes?

MR, ODAM: Yes, sir, I am sorry, the
191 series.

Q (By Mr. Odem:) Mr, Karl Williams went through
these, Mr..Couling. and I will ask you to look
at these items which Mr. Williams testified to.

As you examine them, Mr, Williams has testifie
these apoear to be covies of advice of charge on
the account and I believe Mr. Mitchell noiﬁted

out some debit memos.

Q VNow, the ones you have ervamined here, do you
retain in your nossession the originals of those?
A Nn, sif, I do not have the otfz{nals.
MR; ODAM: Your Hnn&r. we wnuld reoffer
at this time 179-30 through 24: the 188
series, 189 series and 191 certfes and 190
series.
THE MASTER: I thought you said 179,
MR, ODAM: Yes, sub-narts 30 through 24,

The first nnes have already been admitted.
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THE MASTER: lRight.

Mr, Mitchell, as I understand it, 179-30
through 4 have now been offered and as has
F-186, E-187, E-188, E-189, E-190 and E-191,

MF., ODAM: And I don't know if the Court
called off 187, Itelieve he did,

THE MASTER: 1If I Aid not, I intended

to.

/

/
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MR. MITCHELL: And I will object --

THE MASTER: Okay.

MR. MITCHELL: -- and some of them are
originals and some of them are not originals.
Some are predicate questions to follow offers
that have been previously made in connection
with those that were photocopies and I am
sure the Court appreciates that. I would
like, with leave of Court, firgt to direct
certain predicate questions to the Exhibits
186, 187, 190 and 191, which deal with
coples and on 86 -- 186-30 to 34 being
originals and having previously --

THE MASTER: Excuse me. I thought 186
was Sub-parts 1 to Sub-pdrts 33. You said
something about 34, I thought. 7

MR. MITCHELL: I'm sorry. I'm sorry,
Judge. It's 179-30 to 34, which are
ori;ihals.

THE MASTER: That's correct, 179-30 to
34, which are five checks that are in the
origzinal.

MR. MITCHELL: I had previously
objected to the series 179-1 to 30, and

with leave of Court, I would like to break
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up my objections to -- first to those, and
then ask some predicate questions with
regard to some best evidence objections on
previous exhibits and level objections to tha&
series and then ask certain other predicate
questions as to the originals that are being
offered, and that igs the 188 and the 189
series, if I might be permitted,

THE MASTER: You may.

MR, MITCHELL: We object --

THE MASTER: Well, state your
objections and then if you have any voir dire
questions; I t#ke it, Mr. Odam, you're not
through with this witness?

MR. ODAM: No, sir, simply to authenticate
at this point, Your Honor.

THE MASTER: I suppose you have other
questions. |

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir.

MR, MITCHELL: We object, if it please
the Court, to 179-30 to 179-34 on the
grounds, one, of hearsay and no proper
pradicate. The offer is at a time too late;
thit is both parties having rested; 1is not

in connection with legitimate rebuttal;

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES
COURT REPORTERS
717 ANTELOPE - GUARANTY BANK PLAZA
CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS 78401




i 4065

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
' 17
18

- 19

beyond the original notice, First Amended
Notice, beyond the term rule. It relates to
nonjudicial acts, hearsay, no proper
predicate; complete surprise as to 179-30 to
17¢-34; request postponement for reasonable
period of time to prepare complete defense
as to these new exhibits; and improper
authentication.

THE MASTER: Do you have any voir dire
questions with respect to those objections of
this witness?

MR, MITCHELL: No, I do not.

THE MASTER: The objections are over-
ruled.

MR. MITCHELL: Now, may I move, if it
please the Court, to the volr dire questions
that relate to offers made by the previous
witness as relates to copies,

THE MASTER: Yes, sir.
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BY MR. MITCHELL:

Q Mr. Couling, you have been asked about a series
of exhibits and 1 believe they are 186, 178, 189,
190 and 191, which are copies.

THE MASTER: No, sir, 188 and 189, my
notes reveal are originals.

MR, MITCHELL: I stand corrected,
Judge, and set aside 188 and 189. That
leaves us to be sure now we are correct --

THE MASTER: Mr. Mitchell, let's take
a break and -- I don't mean it the way it
sounds -~ and get your head screwed onm,
Counsel, and come back and we'll begin.

188 and 189 are originals. The copiles
are E-~186.

MR, MITCHELL: I understand. 189 is
the deposit slips and 188 is the original
checks, Judge.

THE MASTER: That's right.

MR. MITCHELL: I understand that.

THE MASTER: E-187 is a copy; E-190 is

a copy and E-191 is a copy. Maybe you can
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go over briefly with this witness during
the recess ~--
MR, MITCHELL: All right. Judge
Meyers, I can ask about four questions on
the copiles and get them out of the way.
THE MASTER: Thﬁt is fine.
MR, MITCHELL: We'll expedite it,
THE MASTER: That is fine{-
(By Mr. Mitchell) Mr. Couling, I am handing you
here the evidence that is in the form of copies,
1ike the E-190 series that they have in front of
you, the E-191 series that you have in front of
you and the E-187 series that you have over
there, not now including the originals.
First of all, those exhibits relate to yoﬁr
account, do they not?
Yes, sir.
All right. Now, I believe you have testified
that you have the Benavides Implement and Hardware
account, and that is this account?
Yes, sir.
But tﬁese checks do not relate to the Benavides
Imﬁlement and Hardware account and the Rio Grande
City bank, do they?

No, sir. -
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They, for example, would not show any deposits
made by you into that account or withdrawal into

that account?

From the Rio Grande City bank?

Yes, sir.
No, sir.
The reason I asked that question is because I
noted in inventorying them last night, there were
a number of items missing from these exhibits that
are on that account and that would account for
the fact, would it not, that these exhibits do
not include the Rio Grande City account?
No, sir, it doesn't.
MR. ODAM: Your Honor, if I might, and
I don't mean to interrupt, but for the
benefit of counsel, 2l1l1 the Rio Grande
deposits and statements and the checks are
already in evidence.
MR. MITCHELL: Yes, I understand, but
this is not a duplication.
MR. ODAM: No, sir.
(By Mr. Mitchell) So that if anyoﬁe wanted to,
théy could look at the previous exhibits as
suggested by counsel which are the bank

statements, checks, deposit slips which Mr. Bates
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brought to us which is what is here and would |
have a full, complete picture of Benavides
Implement and Hardware, am I correct?

Yes, sir.

But none of these exhibits relate to your

personal accounts, do they, the non --

Well --

There are no exhibits in evidence as to your
deposit slips, such as checks on your personal
account?

I don't believe so, no, sir.

All right. And there are none on the ranch
account; I believe you told us that ybu maintained
No, sir.

Only occasionally there might be transfers back
and forth, but we do not have deposit slips of

the checks on the ranch account?

No, sir.

And we do mnot have the deposit slips of the checks
on the specilal account?

No, sir.

All right. And we have only the deposit slips
and the checks on the Benavides Implement and

Hardware at the First State Bank there in

San Diego, correct?
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Correct, sir.
Now, all of those checks, and that is the
cancelled checks, the bank statements, advicive
charges, the debit memos were all sent back to
Benavides Implement and Hardware and to you?
Yes, sir.
So that the originals, if the bank followed the
law, would have been returned to you, would they
not, in due course, that is from month to month?
Yes, sir,
Now, you do not have those originals, obviously,
of these exhibits that have been made up and that
are here offered in a Xerox or a duplicated form,
do you?
No, sir, that is the only original that I have,
sir.
By that, when you say the only 6rigina1, you're
referring to 188, which are the original checks
and E-189, which are the original deposit slips?
MR. ODAM: Excuse me. Your Honor, I
might pose a question. I thought this was
on voir dire examination of --
THE MASTER: 1It's supposed to be voir
dire. 1 think it has lapped over a bit into

crogs-examination,
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MR. ODAM: I think we ran past four
questions.

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, my questions
would not have been intelligent had they not
Been’narrowed down to the accounts involved
because the witness obviously has. to be
treated fairly., 1 am not talking about eight

- other accounts. I am talking about this one
-and he was in control of the account, the
Benavides Implement and Hardware, am I
cdrrecf, Mr. Couling?

I believe the evidence showed that.

I was the only one that made the checks out.

(By Mr. Mitchell) You're the only one that made
the deposits and the checks --

I didn't make all the deposits, no.

The deposit slips and the checks would come to the
Benavides Implement.and Hardware location, which
1s a location that you had,

Yes, sir,

MR, MITCHELL: We are going to renew
our objection on the best evidence, Your
Honor, of the offer made by the Examiner
through the prior witness, Carl Williams,

on the best evidence objection. We renew it
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on the predicate of nonavailability, which
has not been shown amply and fully enough to |
trigger the exceptlion of the rule to provide
for the introduction of the photostats. or
copies on E-191 series, E-174 series, E-190
series. I want to be sure I get them all.

THE MASTER: E-191?

MR, MITCHELL: E-191, thank you, Judge
Meyers.

Now, I will be finished with that
portion of the examination by --

THE MASTER: Do you have any other
questions of this witness with respect to the
Best Evidence Rule?

MR, ODAM: No, Your Honor; I don't.

THE MASTER: Where are the originals?

THE WITNESS8: I don't know. I couldn't
find them, Judge.

THE MASTER: The objection is overruled.
We'll be in recess for twenty minutes.

Mr. Owen, will you number the sub-parts
of E~191 and then lat all of us know how
many sub-parts there are. You had something 7

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, in view of the

Court's question, which I think 1is a proper

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES
COURT REPORTERS
717 ANTELOPE -« GUARANTY BANK PLAZA

CORPUS CHRISTI), TEXAS 78401




4073

10
|
1
13
M
15
16
17
18

o > o »

»

question, I would like to ask one or two
more,
THE MASTER: Certainly.

(By Mr. Mitchell) There is no reason why they
wouldn't come to your address, isn't that correct?
No, sir,
And no reason why they came to your address that
you wouldn't get them?
No, sir.
And if you couldn't find them, that would be
perhaps you-have disposed of them?

No, sir, Lorenzo used to make my income tax and

he passed away and I don't know what happened to

them, I didn't collect anything when he passed
away and I went to look for my.returns and
everything.

Rudolfo, Lorenzo was your employee and that is
what yor had him hired for?

Yes, sir.

And you delivered the originals to him?

Yes, sir.

And you simply can't aceount to this Court or this
record where those originals are?

No, sir.

It's no doubt that you had them --
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I had them at
MR,
and make

THE

one time.

MITCHELL: We renew our objection

a motion to strike.

MASTER: For the record, identify

who Lorenzo was.

THE

WITNESS: He was my uncle.

THE MASTER: His last name?

THE WITNESS: Lorenzo Garcila.

THE MASTER:

He had been referred to

earlier and he is the same Lorenzo Garcia?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE MASTER:

(Whereupon,

twenty minutes.)

Recess for twenty minutes.

court was. in recess for
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(Whereupon, said document having
been previously marked for identification
as E-191, sub-parts being marked 1 through
54.)

THE MASTER: Let's get on the record.

MR, ODAM: Okay.

THE MASTER: I have E-186 as offered.

I have E-187 as offered. E-186 includes
Sub-parts 1 through 33, E-187 includes
Sub—pﬁrts 1 through 23. E-188 inclﬁdes
Sub-parts 1 through 207. E-189 includes
Sub-parts 1 through 130, E-190 includes
Sub-parts 1 through 193 and now E-191
includes Sub-parts 1 through 54,

I have all of those as offered. I do
not note in my records that they have been
admitted, And I understand that we took the
break -- well, we took the regular break, but
part of the purpose was to finish numbering
E-191, where Mr. Mitchell would have a chance
to look at them. I think you have made
your objection, but I am not sure, and I
think you have --

MR, MITCHELL: Yes, Your Honor, I have
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objected to all except -- pardon me, Judge
Meyefs. Except the 189 series and the 188
series, which are the original checks. That
is the 188 series and the original deposit
slips, which are the 189 series. I believe
that is where we stand.

MR. ODAM: Yes.

THE MASTER: Well, that is correct. I
overrule the objections and E-186, E-187,
E-188, E-189, E-190 and E-191 are all
admittéd into evidence. _

MR, MITCHELL; I didn't object to 188
and 189, Judge.

. THE MASTER: Oh, I'm sorry. I thought
you had. Go ahead and make your objections.
They are originals.

MR, MITCHELL: Yes, sir, they are.

THE MASTER: And I assumed you had a
standing objection?

MR. MITCHELL: I do., I do, Judge,
without the best evidence objection. That
is precisely right, Judge, and without
burdening the recbrd, 1f I may have it
clearly understood that they are included,

the objections to 188-1 to 207 and 189-1 to
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THE MASTER: You may as well state it.

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, we object, first of
all, Your Honor, to each and every part of
188-1 to 188-207 and E-189-1 to E-189-130,
each and every part on the grounds of
hearsay, relating to transactions between
third parties, parties unrelated to Judge
Carrillo. They would be therefore hearsay,
if it please the Court. They are not
1egitihate rebuttal, both sides having rested
matters contained.in these two exhibits,
therefore, it would be inadmissible under
the rule that the rebuttal -- that is the
tegtimony should come in under the strict

rule of rebuttal; in that connection, if it

please the Court, we move in tandem to strike

R-91, 92, 93 and 100. In addition, Your
Honor, we object to the introduction of the
proffered testimony -- evidence, the
documentary, in that it's beyond the May,

1975 notice. 1It's beyond the First Amended

Notice appearing and in connection therewith,|"

we plead surprise and request a postponement

to prepare a coﬁplete defense to the matters
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raised, and incidentally, Your Honor, to
prepare for a complete and careful cross-
examination, which is8 now raised by these
exhibits, which taken in connection with the
sworn testimony of this witness on prior
occasion,

We object further on the introduction
of these documentary in that they relate to
nonjudicial facts, irrelevant, immaterial

and beyond the jurisdiction of this hearing;

no proper pradicate; no proper authentication

contrary to the position taken by the
Examiner in regards Roman VIII through XII
as relates to tﬁe congpiracy allegations and
proof; contrary to the position taken to the
Examiner as relates to a partnership, in

connection with Roman VII through XII; and,

Your Honor, in addition we object on the

grounds that the documentary relates to
matters which were within the notice and
knowledge of thé Examiner and that should
have been revealed, should not have been
concealed to this point in the trial, thus,
placing Judge Carrilld at a disadvantage in

the proper meeting of the additional facts
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and allegations raised by those documents
and their sub-parts.

Thank you, Judge Meyers.

THE MASTER: Objections are overruled.
You m#y proceed, Mr. Odam,

And if it's not clear, the exhibits
that I have just enumerated, E-186, E-187,
E-188, E-189, E-190 and E-191 are all

admitted.

(Whereupon, sald exhibits having
been previously marked for identification
E-186, E-187, E-188, E-189, E-190 and E-~-191

were admitted.)'

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES
COURT REPORTERS
717 ANTELOPE - GUARANTY BANK PLAZA
CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS 78401




4080

10
11
12
n
| 14
15
16
17
18

18

8 B

R 2

EXAMINATION

— — o — — m— o St W —— m—

BY MR. ODAM:

Q Mr. Couling, --

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, Judge.

May

I ask one more question of this witness that

relates to the authentication, particularly

of the 190 series?

THE MASTER: Yes, sir.
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(CONTINUED)

BY MR. MITCHELL:

Q Mr. Couling, the reason I previously asked you

the reason that the accounts relates to the First
State Bank of San Diego accounts, wag your prior
testimony that all of the dozer and the plow
checks went out of the Rio Crande City account;

you recall that testimony?

A Yes, sir,

Q Now, I am puzzled at E-190-181, which --

THE MASTER: Is this voir dire?

MR. MITCHELL: Yas, sir. 1It's in
connection with the E-191 -- I can reserve
it for cross, Judge Meyers, but I am reallj
torn between whether it's part of
authenticating or part of cross and I will
let tha Court --

THE MASTER: Go ahead and I will stop
you 1f I think it becomes cross rather than
voir dire.

MR. MITCHELL: Fair enough, Judge

Meyers. 1 appreciate that,
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(By Mr. Mitchell) 1 notice, for example, E-190-
181, Mr. Couling, is a copy of a check from you
to B. D. Holt and it says rent on plow out of the
bank that you told me there were no checks on i
that relates to that dozer or that root plow and i
that is the First State Bank of San Diego?
No, sir, I don't helieve -- I didn't say they were.
from San Diego. I said there could have been one
or two from San Diego bank at that time, sir.
THE MASTER: I think thac.ia cross-
examination.
MR, MITCHELL: Right. May I reserve --
THE MASTER: Of course.
MR. MITCHELL: May I ask the reporter
to duplicate for me, if he would, my previous
question put to him within the last five
minutes, as to what -- whether or not there
is any questions -- any checks on that

account, and thank you, Judge Meyers, for

permitting me to ask him about E-190-181.
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FURTHER EXAMINATION

BY MR, ODAM:

MR, ODAM: We would like to have this

marked as E-192,

(The above mentfoned document was
marked E-192-1 through E-192-12 for iden-
tiffc?t{nn.)

Q Mr. Calling, T show you what the court reporter
has marked as E-192 with sube-narts E-192-1 through
12. Mr, énullng, I will start with page E-192-1,
and for clasrification of the récord, this ie for
the nurnose onf authentication only.

What 1s the chart, E-192, have you seen it
before?

A Yes, sir, I have,

O Was this chart nrenmared under your supervisfon

and direction?

A Yes, sir,

Q And the information contained on here, could you
degscribe to the Court what it ourvorts to be?
A It csme from the bank statements and from pnapers

that were fivxed in by Mr, Don Lee,.
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Panere fixed by Mr. Don Lee?
Ye=s, Don Lee.
When you refer tn napers fixed by Mr, Don Lee,
T show you what has been marked as E<91, 92 and
93, and ask you to examine those for a moment.
THE MASTER: Do you mean R?
MR, ODAM: Yes, Ynur Honor,
Correction, Mr. Couling, R-91, 92 and 93,
Yes, sir,
Now, the paners ynu referred to from which this
was nreoared, {s that what you referred to, R=-91,
92 and 93?7 |
Yes, sir,
I believe you safid it was prenared from bank
statements?

Yes, sir,

What bank account was it orevnared nn?

First State Bank of San Diegn,

What veriod of time is covered by the bank state-
mente as well as those Exhibits?

Aoril, 1971, to December, 1974, sir.

And the chart which we are referring to here

vwas nrepared from bank statements, Exhibits R-91,

92 and 93, and did you exsine thnse deposit slips

which were offered in evidence?
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Yes, sfr, I d4d,.
Did ynu examine the checks which are offered in
evidpnce?
Yes, sir,
Checks, dennait slips and the advices of charge?
Ye=, sir.
Up in the column where it says date, the dates
are down the lefthand margin, what are those?
The deposits made to the bank. sfr.
And the wordvunder the clio s the word denosit -~
source?
Yes,
Could you fdentify the next column?
That is whether it came from the county or school
nr water district or from individuals.
The fistfour entries where it says county, what
s that?
Checks that came from the counfy.
And this 1is tﬁe source of {t?
Yes.
Now,'sktoning down --
MR, MITCHELL: I am not able to see
the Exhibit and there is no way I know where
Counsel! {s poing with those auestions. He

has an Exhibit the takes a magnifying glass
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tn read, in the first nlace, and --

MR, ODAM: Is Counsel saying the cony
vyou have before you {s not the same as this
one here?

MR, MITCHELL: I am asking you to
noint un where you are tslking about.

THE MASTER: Have you given one to Mr,
Mitchel1?

MR, ODAM: Yes, sir,

MR, MITCHELL: I am tryving to follow
and thfs fs one you gave me,

MR, ODAM: Ye;, I sa{d‘oage 1 and I
started at the top and iust went acronss and
I thought it was clear.

MR, MITCHELL: Well, if he could identdfy
the date, thé déoosit.the check or something
more svecific, because I am 1ooking at a
sheet fi{lled with {information, ‘

MR, ODAM: I will clarify that, I
thought that was exactly what T did.

THE MASTER: I thought you were going
ftem by {tem, not necessarily each individual
item, but you were describing the Exhibift,

MR, ODAM: Yes.

?HE M?STER: You may nroceed,
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! 0 (By Mr, Odam:) The first column is the date, the
2 second column {= the general descrintion of the
’ denonsft and the source of the devosit?
‘ A Yes.
5 Q And the third column i{s 1dentified as the date.
¢ and I refer to this column throughout, and onage 1
Y through 12, what does the date that fs deplcted
8 there represent?
s A The date renresents the date of the check to an
10 individual,
! Q And the nert column, which is the caotion at the
12 ton, says check and under the clin {t says payee,
13 what would generally be the informatfon contained
1 on here?
15 A The amount nf the check and the name of the nayee
18 to whom the check was made from Benavides Implement
17 and Hardware snd the check number,
18

Q And it refers to the amount and the nayee?

19 A Yes.

R Q And would the same be true throughout this
a Exhibit on sub-pats 1 through 12?

2 A VYes,

= Q Now, {dentified on the original here and on
% Mr. Mitchell's cony -- strike that.

25

There is a2 dash line across from the source,
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Aacross, in some instanées, and not completely
throushout the chart, but a dash line from the
source tn the payee., The red 1ines here are dash
ines and nnt red on Mr, Mitchell's cony, but

the dash lines across, coauld you generall explain
for the benefit of the record what these dash
Tines refer to?

Yes, sir, they treace the deposits from the check
made to the individual from the Benavides Imole-
ment and Hardware store,

Take, for example, on Aoril 26th, and again, for
the benefit of the record and Counsel and the
Master, {f this is admitted, we will go into
detail, but, take for example, the second entry,
the date of Aeril 16, 1971.

There {s a school district check in the
amount of one thousand seventy-four dollars fortyf
eigt cents and it says school.dtatrict and looking
at R-92 I seé the first entrf on the school dis-
trict there is a like amount, is that correct?
Yes.

And that is from your earlier testimony, that is
why {t'shys school district?
Yes,

And that is a school district sheet, R-92?
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A Yes,

0 And the dash 1ine dashes across to a check
written on the same date and n the same amount
tn Farm and Ranch Store, 1s that what you mean?
Yes,

And the number is outside that, that is what?

The check number from the source.

o P O 9>

Mr., Couling, what i3 this chart, E-92-1 through 12,
s this a reflection i{n chart form of a recon-
struction of evidence or documents which are
admitted {nrnvidence?
MR, MITCHELL: That is beyond thie
witness' knowledge. He {s an expert, but --
_ MR, ODAM: I wfll strike that auestion,
Q@ The information contained on the chart {s from
the sources of information in evidence in the
record already.
A Yes,

MR, MITCHELL: We again object and ask
to strike that as an {moroner ouest{oﬁ to
ask a Tay witness.

MR, ODAM: Let me renhrase the auestion,

Q I b?l{eve from your previous testimony that the
amounts of money here on the lefthand column and

the sources and the amounts of checks written out
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and their payees, that information which is on
the chart nrenared under your sunervision and
directi{on. that infoermation was taken from the

evidence -hat was here in evidence through the

documents Counsel has nreviously made objections

to,

Yes

v

i{s that correct?
eir,

MR, MITCHELL: We are gofng to object
again to that éuestion. I have taken the
evidence from Mr, Ocam's information and taken
that evidence and cross-entered it on this
Exhibit and have at least several hundred
i{nstances where I can't {denti{fy the Exhibits.
I can't {dentify them and I will take him
on voir dfreAto quest ion him concerning that
gsituatfon.

T have tried to do that and sonent
auite a bit of the ntghtvtn do that,

THE MASTER: Youare entitled to do so.

Well, po ahead and take the witness on voir
dire, I may have questions of him also.

MR, MITCHELL: Out of fairness, I didn't
have the advantage of the E~19)1 series and
it 18 verhans that that wil1l f111 in the gan.

THE MASTER: A1l right., That may fil}
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in the gan.

MR, MITCHELL: I did take the rest of
them, Yr, Cutwright nﬁd I d4¢d, and tried to
inter-relate to them, but if Counsel will
represent to me that the R-191 series, 189,

190 series and so forth are tied into this

Exhibit, then I can nerhans withdraw my
obiection,

THE MASTER: I assume it includes 186
and 187,

MR; MITCHELL: Yes, and if the ones
testified to by Mr; Willfams are ~-

MR. ODAM: May I resnond, Your Honor?

THE MASTE R: You may resoond, Mr. Odam,

MR, ODAM: The ones which I didn't ask
Mr, Couling ébout, the checks on the San
Diepgo bank, those are conies from thé bank
usd in setting up this Eshibft, Whether or
not Judge Carrillo nersonally signed his
name to is or did not, in my judgment, would
g0 more to the weight of that document for
whatever nurnose it was admitted. .

I do renresent 174 through 178 is on
here and we nrobably could fdentify 1t

exactly.
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I will reoresent to the Master and to
Judge Carrilln and Mrr Mitchell that the
Exhibits which Mr. Mitchell referred to yes-
terday, he said eight hundred and fffty-three
nf them, that is probably that and with the
additton of the others, more than that.

With those documents. this chart was
nrepared. Now. I am going to be subject,
on croes-evamination, or Mr. Caling will, to
the extent that Mr., Couling in instructing
how to nreoare thie, that it {s not yet
comnlete,

Mr. Mitchell stated a great deal of time
was snent by him in crossing this and it Is
intended, as Mr, Couling stated, to reflect
all of the eight hundred fifty-three Exhibits.
To the extent it is not then clear, we are
subject to those omigsions. We will try,
{f 1t is admitted, to clarify why and where
it 18 not comnlete,

That is a long-winded answer, but it
18 & reconstruction of the San Diego bank
account,

MR, MITCHELL: And not the snecial accoun

or the Rio Grande City bank sccount or the
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ranch account?

MR, ODAM: That is correct, simoly the
Benavides Imnlement and Hardware account,

MR, MITCHELL: A1l right,

MR, ODAM: Well, Ynur Honor, I would
nffer in evidence E-192 and ft's sub-parts
at this time.

MR, MITCHELL: May I hae the witness
on voir dire?

THE MASTER: You may,.
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VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION

BY MR, MITCHELL:

A Yes

Q Mr. Couling, you testified you undertook the
orenaration of E-192«1 through E-192-12, either
- you did it directly or it ws done under your
cunervision,

. sir, I was there when it was made.

Q The reason I questioned you about that, if you

1ook at E-192-2 3 and 4, you find those in one
handwriting and E-192-5 and 6 are in another gnd
E-192-7, 8 and 9 are in'another h;ndwriting and
E-192-10, 11 and 12 are in another handwriting,

Whose handwritings are those?

A Don Lee, Ms, Levatino and Max Flusche,

Q Max Flusche and M#. Levatino are attorneys for

the Examiner here?

A  Yes,
Q And Mr. Lee, for the record, who ie Mr, Lee?

A He fs with D,P.S,

MR, FLUSCHE: He works fnr the D.P.S,

in the Intelligence Division,

Q VWhen dfd the four of you, you, Mr, Lee and Mr.

Flusche and Ms, Levatino commence the preparation

of E-192-1 through 192-127?
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Q

I belfeve {t was Monday, sir,

This week?

Yés, eir,

That would be the 16th day of December?

MR, FLUSCHE: 15th,

15th day of December?

Yes,

It 1= a chart that appears to contain denosits,

dates of those denosits, the source and also

checks comine out of that Benavides Imnlement and

Hardware asccountat the Firet State Bank of San

Diego, fe that correct?

Yes.

Now. at the time you were given the information --

wha, first of all, gave you the information?
Lét;s 100k aé this Exhibit, Who gave yvou

the information that went to nnge.l of E-;92-1?

We took the bank statements from the bank,

Well, where did they come from, dfd somebody give

them to you? -

I believe I had given them to Jéhn Blanton a

few months ago.

Is 1t a fair statement to say that all of the

material that went inte E~192-1 through 12, that

the Exhibit wac orenared and given to you on
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December 15th, all of the checks aand devosit
c1lips in evidence -~
Revneat the ocuestion,
I say, a1l that material was eiven tn you and was
{n_exiﬁtence by December 15th?
Yes,
I am trying to find out whether it s your work
or Me., Levatinn's or Mr. Flusche's or Mr, Lee's
work.

Did they funnel the material to you ==~ you
did not wr{t; 1t down, did you?

No, <ifr

The material was given to you by whom?
We were all toecether.
Was the materfial g{ven to you and you called it
off and they wrote it down and all of them pre-
vared the senarate nart of it so you cnuld look
At 1t?
I was there, sir,
You didn't have any part to dn with the innut,
Ma. Levatino d1d hers and Mr. Flusche tnok his
and did those and Mr. Lee took his and did those?

No, sir, I did not do any of the writing,
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MR, MITCHELL: We are going to object.
Your Honor. as I understand the rule on ev'-
dence on charts and summearies and I will
treat thia as a chart and a summarsry for
the surnore of my obisctinan, Objectinns sre
two~fold: One. as to fmnroner characteriegs-
tions cnnta‘ned on the document snd two, as
to the document {tself., We would nbject tn
192-1 thrnough and fneludine 1?2 on what we
will consfder {mprover cheracterizations
amountine to comments unnn the wei{ght of the
evidence such as the use of the word source,
Your Honor, nayee, such as the use of the
words school diatrict, words and exoressions,
Your Honor, which we deem to be {imoroner
characterizations, fmnronner notations,

That f= the first ohjection, The second
nne, inter-relates under this second class of
obiectlon now reaches to the heart of the
documents, Your Honnr, It would be firsat
that the matters contained in E-192-1 throuch
snd t{ncludfing 12 would be -- firat of all,
the chart would be fnadmissible. The gravh
would be {nadmissible fnsofsr as ft's based

on rank hearsay. It would be ‘nadmissible
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8s far as 1t attemots to resolve comflictine
testimony as to any given ftem because {t
canmot, as I understand the rule on charts
and summarfies, resolve a conflict between
evidence.

We would, therefore, object on imoroner
authentfcation, unon hearsay, and this
witnees has nn nersonal knowledee of it.

THE MASTER: A1l right, I admit the
Exhibit,

Mﬁ. MITCHELL: One other obiection,
Judge Meyeres., Until I am satisfied, I must
nrotect my record, I do not have and I am
unsble to tie i{n each and evéry entry with
the evidence that has been intrnduced, but
I understand that, for examnle, the 191
gseries, I A1{d not have the 191 series when
I made the analysis and I want the record
to refleét that, buf I w&uld object that s
not based uvon the evidence that has been
introduced hefore the Court in addition --

THE MASTER: Well, I don't understand
that ohfection, - It's renresented that --
it's my view that it's merely s summary

Exhibit. of the checks and deposit slips that
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are in evidence and to the erxtent that it {s
not sunnorted by the underlying evidence,
ané, nf course -- well, ft's not gofnp to
have any wefght,

MR, MITCHELL: Rfght Yur Honor. So
the Court understands my nbjection, let me
show you my cooy of 192 that I have been
able to make uo from the evidence. I have

added the evidence out to the right as the

Court could determine. There are many entries

that are not sunported by sny Exhibit numbers
on E-192, My objection fs that I did not --
not that's {s there. I just dfdn't sfmnly
have i{t. I have everythfng that had been
introduced. I thought, Your Honar, ewcent
E-191 seri{es and Counsel, of conurse, has
made renresentation which I am willine to
accent, but I do want tn preserve the record
tn the extent that the Exhibit 142 dnes not
suoport any evidence and we would obfiect to
te.

THE MASTER: To the extent that there
sre not sny underlying documents in this
record that are supportive of the Exhibit,

the objection is sustained, but as you know,
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vesterday, '

MR. MITCMELL: I understand, Judge, and
ft's auite nossible, as I say, that they
vwere included in this series that we did
not have the benefit of ot the time we had
the Exhbits,

THE MASTER: I take it, Mr. Odam, every
item on there is documented in this recnrd.
You may be wrong, but you don't think you
are, _

MR, ODAM: Aﬁd for --

THE MASTER: But the Exhibit is
admitted as s summary Exhibit of underlying
Exhibits that have oreviously been admitted,

MR, MITCHELL: Right, Judge, in order
to srotect my record further, then, I wuld
have to obiject =- I have leveled what I
qonsidef as technical objections to the
Exhibits, That {s the summary in short;

If it's gofng tn be introduced now as it

has been by the Court, T would move to strike
it and level with further objections as
follows: That 18 not a legitimate rebuttal,

Tt's beyond the scope of legitimate rebuttal.
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It's beyond any character of notice to this
witness, that is, Judge Number S, contained
in the May, 75, letter from the Commission

nf Firet Amendd Notice of Hearing. It cer-
tainly, 1€ 1t results in his diseualification
or remnval would be a violation of his

rights without due nrocess because of no
notice, horizontal or lateral; beyond the
term rule: that is the 75 term does not
relate to any matters dealing with the exer-
cise of his office.as judge, It relates to
non-judicial acts. There {s no support in
that' I have ben sble to ascertain the formal
or the amended notice which would in any
manner suggest any inter-relation between
the pnayees, fér example, Continental 011
Company and Sears Roebuck and C P and L and
Judge Carrfllo in any misconduct unon the nart
of the Jupe,

It vinlates the best evidnce rule: no
nrover predicate, I would like to nlead
surprise at this time and reauest » reason-
able neriod of time, and that 1s sugpested
really in the rule of fifteen days to meet

what I consider this entirely new gnunds for
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notice “ere,£ {f {t vlease the Court, and
{morooer suthentfcation., I think which {»
the summary of our orinr obilections,

THE MASTER: Those ohbhlectfans are nver-
ruled,

MR, ODAM: Your Honor, I wauld nroffer
to the Court, as we go through the Exhibit
E-192 what I would reoresent to be a onhoto-
static renrnduction of that for the Court
tn examine which ts tdentical to what Mr,
Mitchell has hefore him and which {s {denti-
cal to what I would be aneaking from and
what 1s {dentical to what the witness has,
In other words, our three nhotostatic confies
are the same. The pages sre numbered and
the -- |

MR, MITCHELL: Judge, I hate to be {ust
incredulous, but I understand that Counse!
reopresents these errors to indficate that the
various dollars, for exsmonle, 6-30-71 of
nine eighty-two sixty-five --

THE MASTER: Slow down, Mr, Mitchell,

MR, MITCHELL: For examole, the dollars
received, nine eighty~two sixty-five on

6-30-71.. and just pfcking mme at random on

—_—-
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E-192-1,

THE MASTER: On what nare?

MR, MITCHELL: On the first oage.

THF. MASTER: Sir?

MR, MITCHELL: E-19?-1, and I am takinge
that examnle, Is Counsel tellfne this Court
and the record --

THE MASTER: Mr, Mitchell, I didn't
follow ynu. Say {it over apa’n,

MR, MITCHELL: I am actually reaquesting
that I be able tossk & nuestifon, I can't
believe that this Exhibit {s being intro-
duceé for the truth »nf assertion such as,
for evamnle, the way-out acsertion that the
nine hundred‘n{nety-two donllars and sivty-
five cents shown as the denosit on 6-30-71
is the same money, dollars and cents-wise
that went out to O, P, Carrillo in check
number 174, nine eighty-two perfod zero rero
oeriod. I mean that line, that dotted line
i{ndicates, nerhaps -~ that i« what he is
talking about or, for examnle, looking uo
there at 6-17-71, how in the world would
anyone know that the two checks of seven

fifty on 6-17, Ynur Honor, would be the
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" same two checks or composites of one tn

Oscar Carrille, number 126, That is E,
incidentally, 188-9 for five hundred and

two hundred and fifty dollares to Ramiro
Carrillo and Brothers. That is E-188-10.

I can't belirve that anyone would contend
that that 1s one and the same dollars or that
Judge O. P. Carrillo has got anything to do
with 1¢t,

MR, ODAM: As‘I stated before, these
lines and the whole chart {s gofng to be sub-
ject to exnlanation on direct and cross-
examination,

THE MASTER: Well, Counsel's comment,
Mr, Mitchell's comment, 1s verhans well
taken in that no one has yet fdentified the
1ines. The Exhibit has been admitted as
chowing the receints andvthe date of those
receints; the checks and-the nﬁyee and the
dates of those checks, but the coordination,
that is to <ay, for examole, as Mr, Mitchell
said on 6-30-71 there is a ﬁine hundrel and
eighty~two dollars and sixty-five cent check
and then there is a line over on the nayee

side on 7-2-71 of nine hundred and eighty-two
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dnltars to O, P, Carrilln,

MR, ODAM: Yes, sir,

THE MASTER: Tha£ is not any proof.

MR, ODAM: Yes, sir. And I had asked --

THE MASTER: That is what you're saying
in nert, Mr, Mitchell,

MR, MITCHELL: Yes, that {s true., Inei-
dentally, one nther matter, too, Judge,
that T will have to object to. His Exhibits -
I forgot to note this, 189-1 to 189-120 don't
show the source of these checks, So, tn the
extent that this Exhibit 192-1 shows the
soufce. somebody -- I want to know where that
information came frmm. So, the Court under-
stands thfs -~

MR. ODAﬁ: Well, ~-

MR, MITCHELL: Excuse me, Mr. Odam.

Sn, the Court will understand, you will have

"to look at 189 ~=

THE MASTER: You mean the denosit slins
don't show?

MR, MITCHELL: No.

'THE MASTER: Wait,

MR. MITCHELL: It don't show where they

come from,
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MR, ODAM: Some of them do.

MR, MITCHELL: Right, but it don't
chow they sare county, that they are water
district or school dfstrict as shown on

192, Mr. Odam. That is the thing, That

cértafnly would be hearssy. The designa-
tions, the water district, the school dis-
trict, 1t's nat on their original Exhibits.

MR, ODAM: Well, as the Master can see
in examining -~ in some instances they do
statewmter district or W.D, or Benavides
School District ana as nofnted out with the
witness on reference to R-90, 91, 92 and 93
;s an eramnle on the water district, it's
that amount and it was also used as the
w{tngss statéd to comnute the source ~-

MR, MITCHELL: Some of those water --
deposits that the Court s now looking at
refer to 1nvoi¢es. Some ‘the Court will --

THE MASTER: Invoices nr check numbers,
I am not sure that they are referring to.

MR, MITCHELL: It don't say county and
it certafnly dnnft say school district,

THE MASTER: Mr. Mitchell, to the

extent -~-
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MR, MITCHELL: Excuse me, Your Honor,
WVhat I am really worr{gd about, Judge Meyers,
is {f those are {nvoice numbers the testi-
mony shnws that Cleofus Gonzalex forged
those on Benavides Independent School Dis-
trict -- Benavides Imnlement and Hardware
invofces and that man didn't have any notice,
so that would be hearsay upon hearsay,

THE MASTER: To the extent that 192
is not supported by any underlying evidence,
it's not probative to me: that is because
Mr. Don Lee or Ms. Levatino or Mr, Flusche
wrote in county, and unless thﬁt is in the
record, it's not oroof.

MR, MITCHELL: I agree, Judge. I wish
there was some way I could take that out of
that Exhibit ﬁlong with those other errors.

THE MASTER: Well, the errors are not
sproof. The lines are not proof and to some
extent, I assume that the source shown on
this chart will be reflected by the under-
lying evidence: to some ertént it may not
be.

MR, ODAM: I would -~ it should be

fully suworted as the source by underlying
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evidence in the recnrd., As I used, for
erample, the entry on R-~92 where it says
water dietrict, and it's cunnorted either
by R=91, 92 and 9% or by the Exhibits that
Mr. Mitchell has in his hands,

MR. MITCHELL: R=-91, 92 and 93 were
objected to,

THE MASTER: Now, R-91, 92 and 93 -~

MR. MITCHELL: Were objected to by
Counsel that they were hearsay and we agreed,
We have pone back to the raw data which 1is
the innut, When 189«1 through and including
E-189-1 to 70, which Your Honor has examined
and as I sit here and evamine, there are no
designat{onsﬁ very few designating the source
of the denosit and to the extent that E-192
1 through and including 12, desf}natp that
source, That is oure old unadu1e;ated hear-
say, Judge Mevers.

i THE MASTER: Well, I dfsagree with that,
but you and I don't apree on hearsay anyvhow,
MR, MITCHELL; Never have, have we,

Judge?
MR, ODAM: For clarification --

THE MASTER: But I agree that is nnt

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES
COURT REPORTERS
717 ANTELOPE - GUARANTY BANK PLAZA
CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS 78401




4109 L

10
11
12
13
]
15
16
17
1

21

24

- 1t's the county,
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nproof, It's not to me, Hearsay is simnly
not orabative and I do nnt think, Mr., Odam,
that R-91, 92 and 93 can be sunoortive of
this E-192, They were introduced by Mr,
Mitchell; They were not vouched for by him,

In fact, he offered them only as rebuttal
to your overall position and he did not
adont them as his Exhibits, They weren't
made by him. They simnly were Exhibits pre-
pared by somecne with the Attorney General's
offfce or working for the Attnrney General's:
offi{ce that he thought refuted your nosition
and that 1s the only basis unon which they
were offered and admitted.

So, 1 dq not think they can supnort
this., T think that the figures, if you have
checks indicating these amounts, showing
these nayees, that is fine, and devosit éltos
indicating these demosits. But if the
deposit slin that says on 6-30-71, nine
hundred and eighty~two dollare and sixty~five
cents does not reflect that the source 1is

the county, then, you have not nroved that

MR, ODAM: Well, Your Honor, the -- {f
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[ could recall then, of course, the record
sneaks fnr itself what hannened nn R-91,

92 and 9% and I pive a 1ittle bit of what

I consider record history un to the noint
where we are today. Whst had hannened, was,
as I recall the situation, Mr. Mitchell asked
s series of auestions of Mr. Couling if he
got money from other sources the water dis-
trict, county and school district and he
said, yes, he did. He wanted to know where
the underlying documents were and he said

it was turned over to the Attorney General.
There was a Mr. Octavio Hinojosa and Mr.
Mitchell asked where all nf the claims were,
where all the records sunnorting that was and
he said turnéd over to the Attorney General's
office. And then Mr, Mitchell wanted to
subvoena from Attorney General Hi11l that
underlying documentation. We had a discus~
sion off the record and I talked with Mr,
Blanton about the extent té which 1t wuld
take time to get all of that documentation
and et cetera and it was agreed and then
stipulated, as I recall, and the stisulation

is in the record that the ton of R-91, 92 and

|
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‘that it could be used because that is the

-
93 shows the claim number. the amounts nf i
money and the amount and that was the stinu-
Tatinn to that voint,

I certainly objected that I thought it
was frrelevant and immaterial and that was
overruled. But that was the basis for all
of that., And then after thar was done, we
nroceeded to, or Mr, Mitchell oroceeded with
Judge Carrillo to indicate that the documen-
tation which had been prnffered nursuant to
subnoena was all of this money received from
all of these sources that Mr, Couling got.
They sre R-100, which Mr, =-- Judge Carrille
had orevared again, and it sets out that
here's all of thie money received from the
water digtrict and the county and the school
district., And, so far we have been buflding
the record, imneachine the credibility of
Mr. Couling based on that documentation and
now when the same information which under-
1ined that i{moveachment of credibility 1is used

to premare thie chart, 1t wauld anpear tn me

very opurnose for which his credibility has

been {mneached thus far is the use of R-100,
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91, 92 and 93, to‘say thie is all the money
that ynu nurnorted to recetve.

THE MASTER: Well, I am not sure I
disagree with much that you said, but where's
the oroof- as an examnle, gofng tn the same
entry that we have referred to earlier,
6-30-71, that nine hundred and eighty-two
dollars and sixty-five cents came from Duval
County. I

MR MITCHELL: Pardon me, Your Honor.
May I -~

THE MASTER: No, I want him to answer
the question,

MR, MITCHELL: I want to know where the
sroof 1s oeriod. vIt’s not in the denosit
slins. You note the denosit slins don't
start until November,

THE MASTER: Mr. Mitchell, nlease. I
am asking Mr., Odam. Where in the record,
efther in R-91, 92 and 93 -~ where is the
supnort that nine hundrel and eighty-twn
dollaxz and sixty~five cents devosited on
6«30-71 came from. It says county., I
assume that means Duval County,

MR, MITCHELL: Judge ~-
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MR, ODAM: W~11, it's not there,

MR, MITCHELL: ‘It's not. Can I speak,
Judge? |

THE MASTER: Are ynu trying to heln or
hurt him?

MR, MITCHELL: No, I am trying to hurt
him,

MR, ODAM: Mey I respond to the auestion?

THE MASTER: Please.

MR, ODAM: R-91 is labeled County of
Duval, Benavides Imolement and Hardware,
and drop down to & date which was the date
that is in the lefthand corner, 6-14-71,
claim number B~1329, amount nine hundred and
elghty-two dollars and sixty-five cents,
fund: road énd bridge fund, code 229, That,
at least, was the bacis for the entry of
this amount of money.

Now, I cald go through either with this
witness on the stand or off of the stand,
and we could do it in & recess to show the
extent to which the denosit speciflcally
would indicate County of Duval. In other
words, nick out a deposit slin which {s in

evidence and it says county nf Duval. Some
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- my resnonce s that either the denosit slio

nf those denosit =21ins are {n bulk form.
For examnle, you might have -- let's take
the first one, the 4-16. There are a number -r
there are four county ones, It might very
well be that those four county checks which
are identififed, for evamnle, 4-16 on 4-12,
and it says date, over the Teft, B-961. The
amount of money, two ninety eighty. Drop
down to 9-14 which {s right above it. On
R-91 a thousand eight {s right above that
and the three o eight is right above that,
Now, I think that the devosit slin’
shows, you know, a total éf all of that
together, I don't know that without looking

at the Exhibit that {t indicates that, but

the Court has in his hand or the entry on
here is the bagis for that notation of water
digstrict or school d{strfc‘t.

THE MASTER: Well, of course, {f an
original deocument such as the denosit slio
contains & notation that is some sunvort,
but R-91, 92 and 92 are themselves summary
Exhibits, That 1{s they reoresent somebody's

conclusions with resmect to source of various
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funds, hut no one has voeuched far thoee
Exhibits yet. They were introduced as
Exhibits nrenared by the Artorney General or
someone under his direction in nrder to
fefute the Examiner's nosftinn with resnect
to the status of the Benavides Imolement and
Hardware Comnany, but no where unless it's
in these devosit slins nr elsewhere in the
evidence s there proof of the source of
this money and I don't think you can rely
on R-91, 92 and 93 for that pnronosition,

MR, ODAM: Well, Ynur Honor, I could --
what T would suggest do{né then is that --

THE MASTER: Well, I am willine for you
to disagree with me and convince me I am
wrong.

MR, ODAM: Well,K as I stated, I think
that the stinulation --

THE MASTER: And I Q{mply don't recall
the stinulation and that cony s not even
here, but {t's at my -~ unless I gave it
to you, and that December 12th daily covoy.
It's at my motel room.

MR, ODAM: Yes, =ir. May I refer to it

now?
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THE MASTER: Yes, sir,

MR, MITCHELL: Judge, I am dying to
make sn observation, {f I could,

THE MASTER: I don't want you to die,
Hr. Mitchell, Go ahead and make your
observation,

MR, MITCHELL: Where is the deposits?
Where are the deposit slips in E-189, Judge
Meyers, that cover down through and includ-
ing -- that i{s the first two pages. I don't
find an original denosit slin, for example,
for March, Aoril, May, June, July of 71.

The first one I find which is Exhibit 189-1,
if I recall correctly, is in November of
1971 and I mipht be incorrect.

THE MASTER: That's correct, Well, that

' 1s the first one on this stack, If ft's in

ofder, that 1s the first.nne. yes, sir.
| MR; ODAM: Your Honér. I -~
MR, MITCHELL: So, that, in addition,
Yrur Honor. the objectibn would be that not
only is there no documentary in suwnort of
the first two nages, that the reliance has
been nlaced on R-91 -~

THE MSTER: However, they are not in
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order because I havertufnnd five or six down
and ‘'t poes from November to December and then
back to Sentember of ?1.

MR, MITCHELL: Yes., I noted that last
night, Judee Meyers, but I didn't note any
as early as Aonril., I mfght be wrong. I
didn't note any in Aonrit, May, June, July
or Augut of 71, I might be wrong, but I
didn't find any.

THE MASTER : You are, Here 1is one in
May of 71, Why don't you come and look at
it and check to seé -

MR, ODAM: What is the date of that
depnsit, sir?

THE MASTER: 1It's hard for me to rad,
It seems to mé to read 5 --

MR, ODAM: Is there a stamn on 1t?

THE MASTER: Yes, it's stamped -- apain,
what annears to be May 12th, 71,

MR, ODAM: That would be --

THE MASTER: Two hundred and forty-seven
dollars,

MR, ODAM: Sit?

MR, MITCHELL: A hundred and forty-seven

dollers.
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THE MASTER: It is two fnrty-seven,

MR, ODAM: And that is the entry over
to the right,

MR, MITCHELL: No, Your Honor. The
Court said two forty-seven, not two fifty-
seven,

MR, ODAM: Well, that number ordy ~-

THE MASTER: Well, ﬂt's two -- it's

right here. 1It's the one that is forty-nine

dollars snd a hundred and ninety-eipght dollars

a total of two fifty-seven,

MR, ODAM: That 1s the basis -~

THE MASTER: It's on the Exhibit,

MR, ODAM: Whoever sdded those numbers
un didn't carry a one to the ton of the
next column, but.carried a two aﬁd 1t should
be tﬁo forty-seven rather than two ftfty-
seven, eight and nine and carry your one,
That 18 an example of where that entry came

from,

THE MASTER: Well, the record nronerly,

it seems to me, reflects that there s no

disclosed source,

MR. ODAM: That's correct, Your Homor.
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MR. ODAM: That is correct, Your
Honor, and the exhibit does not disclose
the source and the reason for that is that
the deposit slip does not disclose the source
as well. It is simply the deposit slip and
so forth that didn't show that, and for that
reason it is not a school district deposit
or a water district deposit.

THE MASTER: All right. The very next
one is the 5-13-71, eight hundred seventy-
five dollar deposit.

There is a symbol indicating a number,
but it doesn't show school district at all.

MR. MITCHELL: May I note, Your Honor,
there is no comparable entry on R-91.

MR. ODAM: Well, that is not the school
district,

What was the notation, sir?

THE MASTER: Why don't you come and
look at 1it,

MR. ODAM: That is what I thought, the
number is A-426.

THE MASTER: Correct.

MR. ODAM: And the check number is
A-426 and it is in the amount of eight
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THE MASTER: Well, Mr. Odam, do you
think -- correction, do you contend that
there is proof in this record, that for
examprle, that this May 13th, 1971 deposit
nf eight hundred seventy-five dollars
repregsents a check from the school district
te Benavides Implement and Hardware?

MR. ODAM: Yes, 8sir, I do.

THE MASTER: What is that proof?

MR, ODAM: Well, the proof on that one
is number one, R-92, which shows the check
number of the school district, it shows the
amount of the check and at the top 1t says
this is the amount of money that that check
from the school district went to BIH.

THE MASTER: You were referring to =
stipulation and you were going to quote it to
me and I don't have it before me.

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, while he is
looking at that, we would object further to
E-192-1 through 12 in that it 1s hearsay on
hearsay and opinion on opinion in part.

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, I have the

record for December 12th, which was Friday,
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THE MASTER: Yes.

MR. ODAM: That was the time the
discussion was had. The stipulation as to
when they came in was at an earlier date.

THE MASTER: On R-91, 92 and 93?

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, and I would have
to refer to that date on my notes.

THE MASTER: I don't know that it
requires the taking of this much time, but
1 do say to you and to Mr. Mitchell, that
unlegs the stipulation amounts to
acknowladgment of proof, there is no proof
supporting the exhibit E-192, that the
source of these various funds are as
reflected on that-exhibit, except as reflecte
by other underlying documents and Mr. Mitchel
18 correct. Most of these deposit slips
don't show a source.

MR, ODAM: Your Honor, if I might, and
certainly a significant point would be to
what extent the case proceeds, but --

THE MASTER: Well, we can‘break now.
We will break until 12:00 6'clock.

MR. MITCHELL: May I have, before we

break, touch on what a work schedule would be
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of the Court on the pending holiday season.
I am going to want to proceed and --

THE MASTER: Does this need to be on

the record?

MR, MITCHELL: Whatever the Court
desires.

THE MASTER: It is a fair inquiry, but
I don't see that it needs to be on the
record,

Off the racord.

(Whereupon, an off-the-record

discussion was had.)

(Short recess taken.)

W
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THE MASTER: On the record.

The record will reflect that the ExamineL
and counsel for the Respondent and the Court
have had a discussion off the record
concerning our work schedule.

The record,‘of course, reflectg today
is Thursday the 18th, that next week is
Christmas week. The Examiner has stated he
is ready to cohtinue the hearing, starting
the 22nd and going through the 23zd.

He suggests that Christmas Eve Day might
be a day we ought not to hear the case and
I agree with that.

Mr. Mitchell, for the Respondent, and
Mr. Mitchell, make sure I am saying this
correctly, and I think I am, but if you had
your preference, you would prefer to have
the week of the 22nd to reorganize, prepare
and rest some?

MR. MITCHELL: Thét is right,

THE MASTER: And on behalf of Judge
Carrillo, you are requesting that week, is
that correct?

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, I have requeqted a

postponement on the grounds of surprise.
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THE MASTER: 1 may well do that. 1
will tell you at 1:00 o'clock. I did want
the record to reflect, if we recessed, it
is -- well, it is not the Examiner who is
asking for the time off,

MR, MITCHELL: That is right, and
truthfully, I know the holiday spirit is in
the air, but that is not it, I am hardput
to assimilate Ehe material and I do need
time to prepare my presentation.

THE MASTER: You may proceed.

MR, ODAM: Your Honor, I think it would
be appropriate to make additional comments
about R-91, 92 and 93.

THE MASTER: I would like to have that
happen. 1 have read the stipulation and I
don't understand it to say there 1s a
stipulation with respect to source. I may
have misread it.

MR. ODAM: Well -~

Mﬁ. MITCHELL: May I invite a
stipulation that R-91, 92 and 93 are true
in each and every instance in all instances?

I will invite that stipulation.

MR. ODAM: If I could go to the Court's
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inquiry about the source and refer to

Page 2691, and there, where Mr. Hinojosa was
on the stand, the question was asked of him
that he was asked to compile a schedule of
the checks to Benavides Implement and
Hardware from Duval County commencing in 1971
and running through and up to date and

Mr. Hinojosa Says he picked them up.

The dates.and check numbers and claim
numbers, budget code of monies goiﬂg‘into
R-91, as being fiom the county, and R-92
as being from the Benavides Independent
School District and as to R-93, from the
Reclamation District, so I think the document
as it was intended by the questions posed,
and the proffer of it was the summary of all
the documentation we had of checks and as
identified.

The stipulation states the dates of the
checks and the amount and budget copy from
all of ﬁhese govermment entities to Benavides
Implement and Hardware. That is what it is
used for in the use of R-91, 92 and 93, and
the examination of Judge Carrillo and the

preparation of R-100 is to be just that and
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that was turned over for those purposes.

When Mr. Couling was previously
questioned, he was-asked if he did business
with the coﬁnty and so forth and I objected
and we did get those records and it was
turned over pursuant to agreement and the
entire, or a great deal of the impeachment
of the credibility of Mr. Couling was based
on that business going into Benavides
Implement and Hardware,

If it were not for that development,
which we objected to as irrelevant and
immaterial, we would not be here today, so
I am saying they have been used to showing
money into the company and that chart was
prepared on those and the water district and
school district and the county notations were
used on 91, 92 and 93, as well as the other
deposit slips. '

It has been used by one side and to use
Mr. Mitchell's words, I don't think it is a
fair summary of a summary.

It is incredible for me to go for one
purpose, but yet pull it back when it begins

to hurt a little bit.
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THE MASTER: There is some logic to %
the statement you made.

On E-192, where i8 anything about rentalz
income which is on R-91. He 18 hardput on ?
any evidence on the first one, two, three,
four, five pages of R-91, because there is
no designation, but when he gets over here ?
on E-192, it doesn't correspond or comport to
R-91. '

I don't care what he wants to do with
it. T will either.1live with it or I want
him to live with {t.

MR. ODAM: I don't understand.

MR. MITCHELL: I don't see, if you have
any rental income, where is 1t?

MR. ODAM: Of course, it is not there,
it is in evidence.

THE MASTER: That is not the purpose.
The purpose of E-192 is to represent the
deposits into the Benavides Implement and
Hardware and the withdrawals and showing the
source of the deposit and the payee of the
check withdrawing money.

MR. MITCHELL: That is my point. They

want to say it is accounting. When you go to
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R-91, it says rent on 0.P.'s two D-8
dozers. I am saying fine. --

THE MASTER: Let me see R-91.

MR. MIfCHELL: What 1s the expression;
what is good for the goose is good for the
gander, if he says it ig county income, but
don't put the generic term éounty behind it
and then hide behind that, because it doesn't
fit our schemeiof things.

Do you see what I mean, Judge Meyers?

Ypu will have.to have the others, too,
R-91 and R-92 and R-93 as well.

THE MASTER: Mr. Odam, you are saying
under the stipulation, where R-91 shows the
fund being road and bridge, that was, of
course, the county?

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. ‘

THE MASTER: Let me see the stipulation
again, please.

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir.

MR. MITCHELL: And I am saying where he
says county, and R-91 says rental on tractors,
that ought to go in tﬁere and T will buy that,
but I don't want him to come in and say

that is not true and this is true and, that
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is, of course what 1 am talking about.

THE MASTER: Well, I think the stipula-
tion does stipulaté R-91 represents funds
from Duval dounty to Benavides Implement and
Hardware; that R-92 represents funds from
Benavides Independent School District to
Benavides Implement and Hardware and R-93
repregsents funds from Duval County
Conservation and Reclamation into the
Benavides Implement and'Hardwarebaccount.

You may proceed, Mr. Odam. .

MR. MITCHELL: But Judge Meyers, that
does not explain my quandry, There are no
designations on the first five pages. I am
not quarreling with the Court, but when he

gets on '73, he saye 192 doesn't pick it up.

is on R-91 and now, secondly, Judge, I, of
coﬁrse, agree that the stipulation is a
stipulation, but I further agree‘that it
woﬁld'bé improper to take counsel's remarks
in that regard and stipulate the truth of
the matters involved in R-91, R-92 and R-93
unless counsel for Examiner is willing to do

likewise, I want to know what he wants to do
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because he has been objecting to 1t.v

in other words, is it my stipulation or
both of ours and c;n I now treat R-91, when
it comes doﬁn here and says county, for
example, on 1-8-73, when it says rent on
0.P.'s tractors, then he flips over on E-192
and it says county, can I be told that is
what it is and take the position that is also
rent on O.P.'s'tractor or are they going to
take the position it is not?

THE MASTER: Well, I don't know that the
stipulation addresses itself to that. You
requested the stipulation and Mr. Odam
stipulated it and agreed.

1f you are suggesting that the Examiner
cannot now attempt to prove that some of the
recitals on R-91, 92 and 93 are not the
facts, it 1s my position that he may do so.

MR. MITCHELL: May I be likewise
releésed from my bond and do likewise?

THE MASTER: Have you read the
stipulation?

MR. MITCHELL: I read it.

THE MASTER: The stipulation was that

R-91 represented funds from the county and
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R-92 from the school district and R-93 from
the congervation district. You called for it
and he agreed to it.

MR. MITCHELL: I am saying it 1is bilater*l.
The Court is saying, if he wants to renig,
then I want to do the same thing. It is --

THE MASTER: How is it bilateral?

MR, MITCHELL: If it is evidence, he
can't impeach it.

THE MASTER: He is not going to under-
take, and I would not permit it, to prove
that monies did not come from the county or
school or conservation district --

MR. MITCHELL: For the purpose of
stipulating in R-91, 92 and 93 --

THE MASTER: Read that to me.

MR, MITCHELL: Source, fund --

THE MASTER: That is maybe right, but
point it out to me,

MR. MITCHELL: Well, I don't have 1it.
The Court has it.

MR. ODAM: Here is December 5th.

THE MASTER: What page is 1it?

ODAM: 2693.

n.
MR. MITCHELL:  Going down the columms,
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the date, the check number, claim number,
amount, funds, budget code -- of course, that
Page 1 didn't have the purpose and didn't
commence until Page 6 of R-91 on those,

Now, all I want to know is, is the
stipulation covering from six on as to the
purpose? 1 just need to know the rules.

MR. ODAM: Well, I stipulated and as I
stated there., I said R-91, 92 and 93 are
what Mr. Mitchell just read off of them and
what they contain. 1 stipulated what it was
stating at that time.

MR, MITCHELL: All right.

MR, ODAM: 1 listened to him say it,
and if it says check and claim number and so
forth, then I stipulated to that.

THE MASTER: Let's see what the problem
really is. |

To what extent do you intend to attempt
to disprove .the recitals as to what the funds
were used for in R-91, for example?

It says rent on O0.P,'s tractor. Do you
intend to show it was not rent on O.P.'s
tractor?

MR. ODAM: Well, that recital on there -
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THE MASTER: Or do you intend to show
that was the recital on the check?

MR. ODAM: No, sir. The 10-18 -- I used
January 8, 1973, and someone put a notation,
rent on 0.P.'s two D-8 dozers.

THE MASTER: Put on the exhibit or the
check?

MR. ODAM: On the exhibit.

THE MASTER: All right,

MR. ODAM: That that rent on 0.P.'s two
D-8 Caterpillar dozers was not put on there
for the purpose of saying that the county
check was ~- you have to take this in a
context of the entire case. It is not the
fact that the D-8 dozer went out to the
county, but our evidence shows that particulaF
check in evidence, that that money that came
back was applied and then used to pay for
0.P.'s two D-8 Caterpillars.

That is what I asked Judge Carrillo,
why or what that notation meant, because
obviously that would not be an invoice from
the éounty.

That, as our case with that January 8th,

1973, and we could get the county check in
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. the payment for the two D-8 Caterpillars.

that amount, but that check went into a bank

account and from that, that check went for

It was purported that the money was in
the scheme of being obtained for those
purposes. The same thing down on -- and it
nmight -- you see, Your Honor, what I am
saying, as far as the -- like our evidence
hgs been all along that the 10-18 was
connected with the rent that was being paid
all along to Plains Machinery under the
rentai-purchase agreement, vent on O0.P.'s
two D-8 Cats, They were the ones being
rented and the mbney was taken from the count;
into the fund and from that on out, not that
as to leave the impression that those two
D-8 Cats were out doing work.

. There is no evidence in thisg record
they were used for the county, but that the
money was taken from the county to pay for
thosé. That was a notation and this one was
put down here on here all along. That is a
different type of notation.

THE MASTER: I ieé what you mean. You

say because this exhibit says rent on O0.P.'s
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two D-8 dozers doesn't necessarily mean they
were rented to the county. You are
suggesting that on the lease-purchase
agreement, it was money paid for the two
Caterpillars?

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, and that was my
question to Judge Carrillo, what does that
mean, and he said I don't know.

MR. MITCHELL: In other words, what, as
I understand -- we are not going to agree on
Page 6 on that?

THE MASTER: I don't think counsel says
ydu see, that is in a sense ambiguous. That
doesn't necessarily mean the tractors were
rented to the county.

MR. MITCHELL: I am not fussing, because
it is going to be an intricate process
where parties stipulate and then don't,

MR. ODAM: I really object to that, to
say that I would back out of a stipulation.
I don't want this record to indicate that I
have done anything other than that all along.

THE MASTER: I will agree with tﬁat.

You may proceed, ﬁr. Odam.
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BY MR, ODAM:
Q Mr. Couling, I would 'ike for you to nick un page 1

EXAMINATION CONTINUED
(0Of Mr, Couling)

of R ~- correction, E-192, ‘

MR, MITCHELL: Excuse me, Judge, didn't
I have him on voir dire?

MR, ODAM: I am sorry. Maybe that {is
where we are,

THE MASTER: I thought you had -~

Mﬁ. MITCHELL:. I had not euite ~- I
had one more auestion,.

THE MASTER: You may nroceed. I thought
you had finished.

MR, ODAM: Ithought he had, too, and I

am sorry.
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Continued)

BY MR, MITCHELL:

0

T want to a<k you, Mr. Couling.  where you pot the

{nformation nn E~91 nape 1, ac regards the
denosite,

MR, ODAM: Wait., VWhat --

MR, MITCHELL: E-92-1, I mfght have

misstated 1t

Where did you get the informatfon showing under
the denosits or the source?

THE MASTER: E-192-1?

MR, MITCHELL: Right,
I stated before that we got it from the bank
denosfts,
Where?

From San Diepna, First State Bank nf San Diego,

You talked sabout it in terms of evidence. I want

ta find where {t's in evidence so I cmobiect tn

thts Exhibit, 1if I have got one.
I believe 1t was nresented last time I was here
in court, the bank statements,
MR, MITCHELL: Counsel, may I ask -~
Your Honor, {f Mr, Odam wants to heln, I

want to know where the denosit information

CHACTHAM & ASSOCIATES

OURT REPORTERS
717 ANTELOPE « GUARANTY BANK PLAZA
CORPUS CHRISTH, TEXAS 78401




4119,

10

11

12

14

18

16

17

came from an E~192-1, the first oage.

THE MASTER: If this witnesas can tell
you. I mean vour auestinns are addressed
t~ him, |

MR, MITCHELL: He te<tified, if the
Court will recall under nath, that the
deposit data, check data, nayee, all came
from testimony that was in evidence, docu-
mentary in evidence as I recall his testimony,
and I am simply asking him to tell or osoint
up to the Court where the data came fror
on vage 1 of 192-1,

MR, ODAM: Your Honor, I believe that
the witness testified that {t came from
documentary evidence. If Mr. Mitchells
auestion i< to point out snecffically where --

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, that is {it,

MR, ODAM: Then, we can dn that,

. THE MASTER: The nuestion is, can this
witness do that. The auestion to Mr,

Couling 1s in the develooment nf E-192,
speci fically nage 1, but I assume it goes
also to the other papes, how did you deter-

mine the source of the denosits?

A Well, we worked from a chart that was prevared
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by Mr. Don Lee, my bank statements, =ir, from the
bank. We nrepared them from the bank statements
and we noticed we had the statements from the
county, the water digtrict and the school dis-
triect, sir,

MR. ODAM: Also, the eustion Mr,
Mitchell asked I was getting ready to ask
him and that was what Mr, Mitchell's aues-
tion was, I was goftng to ask him, for
examnle, tn -~ I would not want to unless
the Court or Mr, Mitchell wanted me to, but
I was go{ng to take him now through 192 and
pick out the source from which that was and
work thrnugh this for & bit and those were
exactly my aquestions when I sterted to pick
up wa 8 to take R-91 and proceed.

THE MASTER: You have offered E-192 and
1t has been admitted which rulineg I will
happily recnnsider, but I think Counsel has
a right to examine on the Exhibit before
you start voir dire.

MR, MITCHELL£ I didn't mean to stev
on his toes. I thought I had the witness
on volr dire,

" THE MASTER: But he says he intends to
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BY MR, ODAM:

' forty-seven, a thousand eight, three o eight

' eighty and the seven eighty,

develoo the very same material, I think heW
has a right ta do that, You may nroceed,

Mr. Odam.

EXAMINATION CONTINUER

Mr, Couling, you're looking at the entry, and
let's take, for evampnle, the first four, five
entries on Qage 1 and all these references for
the benefit of the Master and Counsel and the
record until indicated otherwise, T will try to
make cdear that I am referring to the first entry
on vage 1 unless I am referring to some other
Exhibit., And I sam referring now to the entries,
Mr, Couling, dqted April the 16th, 1971, and the

first one is twn ninety-etghty, nineteen fourteen

THE MASTER: No, no, it's just three
hundred and eighty.
A1l right, sfr., Let me take those four, first of

all. and the notation out beside 't on the Exhibit,
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Mr, Couling, {fe county. is that correct?

Yos sir.

And will you state for the recnrd what the nota-
tion county means?

Okay. Duval County, Texas, That was checks from
Duval Cnunty, Texas.

I show you what has been marked as R-91 and refer
you to the entries on this one and if you could
first of all read the claim number and exolain, {f
you know, what this is referring to when it says
claim number, for examnle, B-88§.

I believe the county uses a jacket form for this
tn write down the amount of the bi11 and then they
nut a8 claim number beside {it,

For exyample, I show yoh here a jacket that has

" a clalim number at the ton?

Yes.

And could you resad that claim number?

B-1541,

And I am referring to what was marked as H-111,
claim jacket, just for clarification, which was
uséd on welfare store or Cash Store, I believe,
1u§t for clarification. So, this claim number i«

the c¢laim number assigned by the county of Duval?

Yes, sir,
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And the amount wnould be the amnunt of money turned

in by your store to Duval County?

And the road and bridge fund s again nntations
that are kent by the County?

Yes s=ir.

And this amount of money, three n eight, can you
identify the R-971, three n eight? Casn you fdentify
it on the =--

Yes, sir, it's the first check on the first four
checks.

And examining R-91, the first four entries on

R-91, can you find those first four entries on

R-91 as being money naid from Duval County -~

To the store?

Yes, sir,

And are the first four entries on R-91, do they
anoear to be dunlicated on the first entries on
192, oage 1?

Yes, =sir,

The first four entries?

Yes, sir.

1 shoé you what hss been marked as R-89-1 which

is the Respondent's Exhibit and ask if you can
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identify, nlease, sir, for the record, what

Resnondent's Exhibit 89 annears to be.
That {= a cony from the Firet State Bank of San
Dirgo, statement to the Benavides Imolement and
Hardware Comnany on Anril the 30th, 1971,
What is the samount of the first entry of denosit
in that bank sccount?
Three thousand three hundred and one dollars and
twenty-seven cents,
And what is the secoand entry?
One thousand three hundred snd forty~four ninety-
five,
And referring back to the nage 1. I would like
for you to skin down., We can ~- skin down tea the
water district entries, for examnle.

MR, MITCHELL: Pardon me. Counsel, I

didn't follow where thnse went into E-192-1,
thnse last ‘tems., where they cerried nver.‘

MR, ODAM: 92?

MR, MITCHELL; Yes, eir,

MR, ODAM: 192-1,

MR, MITCHELL: The 1ast one,

THE MASTER: He didun't do that,

MR, MITCHELL: He haen't? I'm sorry,

Judge. T didn't mean to address Counsel
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directly, but --

THE MASTER: I think that is hfs ore-
sent aquestion, 1f I understand {t. You are
asking where those denosits are reflected
in E<192 on nage 1, are you not?

MR, ODAM: Yes, sir,

THE MASTER: A11 right,

MR, ODAM: Let's take the ~--

THE MASTER: Are you going to let him
answer that auestion?

WVell, the first ones, the two hﬁndrod and ninety,
the nine foﬁrteen. the thousand and eight and
three n eight, where would those be reflected on
R-89 -« R-89~1, I'm sorry,.

It should be on the three thousand three hundred
and nne dollars and twenty-srven cents,

In other words, the two ninety --

Right.

Point eight o snd the nine fourteen noint four
seven and the thousand and eight and the three

o efght and the nerxt entry down, the seven hundred
and efghty, if that seven hundred and eighty were
added to the devosit would come to a total of
three thousand three hundred and one dollars and

twenty-seven cents?
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That's correct, sfr,

You skinned down to the nert two entrfes on the
chart, the seven hundred and fifty dollers plus
the five hundred and --

Nifnety-four ninety,.

Ninety~-four dollars and =--

Ninety-five cents,

Ninety-five cents eQunls the second entry?

One thousesnd three hundred and forty-four ninety-
five.

Which are backed uo by denosit él*ns in the bank
account?

Yes, sir,.

I sce on the 4-26-71, the bank accounts reflect
the denosit of four hundred and sixty-one dollare
and fifty cents, is that correct?

Yes, sir,

And 1t's referring to the inter~relationship between
R-89~-1 and that denosit 1s four twenty~eight on
the'bank denosit and then the two schooi district
checks, one for a total of one thnusand.
Seventy~-four forty-eight,

Seventy-four dnllars and forty-eight cents,

One for six hundred and --

Plus six hundred and forty-four dollars and
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twenty cents was also devosited in the bank
accnunt?

Yes, sir.

Now, skio down, for examnle, to the May 17th,

1971, entry and turning to nage R-89-2 for forty-

nine dollars and the one hundred ninety-eight

dollars?

Yes, sir.

Those total up to how much?

Two hundred and fifty-seven dollars, sir.

And 1 beltgve sas indicated earl{pr, that was =~-
that was incorrect on the charts. That should be

two hundred and forty-seven dollars: do you

- agree?

Yes.

MR, ODAM: And with leave of Court and
Counsel, I would like to changerth{s second
degit or have it =~ leave it 2s 1s?

. THE MASTER: Well, I thought the deposit

slip on that one was 2lso erroneous,

MR, ODAM: ' No, sir, it was two forty-
eight, )

MR. MITCHELL: No, it wa s two forty,
Judge, and I think he was right.

»-THE MASTER: Oh, I am sorry. I thought

. N ‘)
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it had a mistake on ft,

MR, ODAM: No, sir.

THE MASTER: 2477

MR, MITCHELL: Yes, I will find {t {f
the Court wants me tn,

THE MASTER: Well, that is fine, I

think it's five or six down, Mr, Mitchell,

Q And then you heard the earlier testimony =--

THE MASTER: You may amend the Exhibit
to reflect the correct tontal,

Q And we are changing the seénnd deg{t and total
amount of fhnne to two hundred and forty-seven
dollars and seventy cents,

And skin down, for ewmmle, to the next entry
which is how much on the chart?

A FEight hundred and seventy-five dollars.

Q What is the second entry nn the R-89-2 statement
for the San Diego bank account?

A Efght hundred and seventy-five, sir.

Q And #s you will recall earlier, we looked at
the devnosit sliv which had the invoice number
on it and comnared it with the invoice number
that was on the devosit s1in for that narticular
one from the schonol district and the court had

vointed out it was ==
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The check number?

Yes what ie the check number”?

8246

And the amount of that check?

Eight hundred and seventy-five dnllars,

And the statement has an entry nn {t, R-89-2 of
three thousand dollars. And I refer you on the
chart to the entry for May the ?7th and what {s
the notation on there?

Notes from the First State Bank of San Dieen,
sir.

And what is the notation on R-89-2?

It was 8 denosit made on the ?7th day of May,
sfr,

And this would be the three thousand dollar note
that had been alluded to rarlier that you and
Ramtro took out?

Yes, sir.

Let's skin over, for examnle, to the bank state-
ment for August of == 31st nf August, 71, and
R-89-5, W{1' you skio down to the August entries
which began at the top of nage ? of 192-.2, What
te the first denosit there?

A hundred and flfty dollars, sir.

Will you identify that on the bank statement,
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R-89-5?

Yes, eir,

And vhat {s the =second nn R-89-5?7 What is the
second amount?

Frur hundred and ten dollars, sir,

Does that abnear on the ¢hart?

Yes, sir.

And the next entry, August the 12th of 1971,
those have been tntaled up on the chart, twe
tﬁey not? |

Yes, sir,

And what is the total there on the chart?

Five thousand five hundmd and forty-six dollars
andninety-nine cents,

What 1s the total of the denosit entry on R-89-57

&
.ive thousand four hundred and forty-six ninety-

“nine, sir,

Leé's take that one, for evamnle, August the 13th
of 1971, the notation beside 1t is county?

Yes, eir,

I believe you testified earlier that that wag a
refirence to Duval County. And I will ask you if
you cnuld read from R-91, the first nage the

entry on R-91. the claim number and the amount

'and the funds there?

|

|
|

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES

COURT REPORTERS
717 ANTELOPE - GUARANTY BANK PLAZA
CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS 7840)



4151

|

10

11
12
13
14
18
16
17

19

a2

24

5

B-1776 in the amount of nine ninetv-six, road

and bridege funds and the cade number 229.

And the nevt entry vou have on the chart is three
hundred and ten dollars. Dnes that coincide with
R-917?

Yes, sfr, it's B-1750 for thrre hundred and ten
dollars, road and bridge funds, code 229.

Skin down, fnr evamnle, and also the total devosit
there on August the 13th was a water district
notation, =even hundred and f{fty dollars and
ckinning sver to R-93, that is August nf 1971,
What is the na2tion on R-927?

he check number 6026 in the amount of a hundred
and scventy-five -- seven hundred and fifty
dollsrs and said suvolies for water syetem in
Benavides.

And let's take, just for evxamnle, another entry
here in Sentember. On the chart you have, can
you read the Sentember entry of Sentember the 2nd?
Yes, sir, one tHousnnd.f*ve hundred 2and ninety-
~four dollars and ten cents,

And 1 refer you to the bank statement which is
in evidence which s -- I refer to nage R-89-6

and do you find a deposit of the same amount on

the bank statement?

-+
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Yes, =ir, one thousand five hundred ninety-four
Adnllars and ten cents,

And the next entry nn rhe chart is how much?
Three thousand siv hundrel and twenty-seven thirteen
sir.

And do you find that entry on the entry into the
bank?

Yee, <ir,

And the nevt twn entries. just for examolse, twn
water district checks and their total amount?

One thousand two hundred and ninety thirty-three.
And theer are comnonsed of two water district
checks?

Yes.

And that is the 1st nf Sentember. I am referring
you tn the R-92, first one s five hundmed and
forty dollars and thirty-three cents., Do you
find it on R-93?

Yes, sir, check number 6109 for seven hundred

and fifty dnllars,

Is one entry and dn you find the entry on R-923

of the five hundred and forty dollars and thirty-
fhrbe cents?

Yes, sir., 6109 ia five hundred and forty dollars

and thirty-three cents.

b
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MR, ODAM: Yar Honor, and for the benefit
nf Counsel, the reason T have jfust taken these
few examples in 1ight of earlier conversa-
tion, s teo show the nattern and the basis,
as my renresentation earlier, that the amounts
nf money and the devosits and the source
were taken from the denosit sVins, from the
F~81, 92 and 9?7 and from the bank statement,
R-R9~1 and I have simnly taken these as a
few examnles and I would not unless desired
by the Court to dso, I would not take 12
nages Vand take every nne nf these to orove
them un, although that certainly can be
done, but “t would take an innrdinste amount
nf time and that iz the wvhole purnoce of the
summary in the first nlace, is to summarire
them by the charte,

In other words, I would move on today
sr sanother time to another section of the
chart., I +i11 make that comment at this
time,

MR, MITCHELL:  Judge -~

~ THE MASTER: You can ask the witness {if

that pattern 1e true of the balance of the

chart,
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A Yes, sir,

MR, ODAM: Yes, <ir, let me do that,
Mr. Couling. we have taken you through, or I have
taken you throurh for a few minutes ‘n commarison
of the R«91, 927 and 92 and the bank starment,
R-89-1 or, correction, R-89 with the sub-narts
and the Court has referred to and we have examined
the deposit slins themselves which are in evidence. |
And my eauestion to you {s: Thatdocumentation, was
that used as a nattern of what we have discussed
here: was that used to make um the amounts of

dennsits that apvear throughout the chart?

MR, MICHELL: T was going tn make
nbservation, Judge, but nerhaps I might dn
it when I get him and I was going to see if
couldn't agree that E«192 does not {include
any other recital material beginning on pare 6
of R=91 or the recital material that is in
the for, F-0-R column, and on R-92 or the
for column i{n 93, I think it's obv'ous,

THE MASTER: The Exhibit sneaks for
itcelf, but as I have =een {t, your state
ment is correct.

MR, ODAM: And I would certainly agree

with that stastement, that is obvious -~
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MR, MITCHELL: That will ssve me from
going back in an Mr, Couline when I get him
3 -
tn show that i§>#§’ﬁ§!t carry forth and I
think to that extent wr have accomnlished

S
[ s

that, Thankwﬁﬁgﬂiiﬂdiiggpy’rs.

Mr, Odam has nointed out by the evidence,
it'e intended, the chart {s intended to carry
forth the amount of denosit and the source
of the denosit and that fe the 1abel at the
toon.

VTHE MASTER: Well, this {s a breaking
voint, I believe.

MR, ODAM: Yes, sir,

THE MASTER: Let's break unti{l temorrnw,

(Whereunon the hearinpg was rececsed on
December 18th at 1:00 unt{1 8:10 on Decem-

ber 19th, 1975,)

,
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